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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Hello.  I'm

          3  Jessica Lappin, Chair of the Landmarks Subcommittee.

          4  We have a quorum, so we are now going to begin. I

          5  want to apologize for starting this meeting so late.

          6  You will find over time that I'm actually a pretty

          7  punctual person, but we had a funeral this morning

          8  for Matthew Farrell, who worked for the City Council

          9  for over a decade and was a really dedicated public

         10  servant. In light of the fact that he is actually

         11  being buried right now, I would like to begin this

         12  meeting with just a quick moment of silence in

         13  memory of his dedication and service to this body

         14  and to this City.

         15                 (Moment of Silence)

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         17                 Mr. Tierney.

         18                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We would like to

         20  welcome you and would you like to begin?

         21                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Thank you. I will,

         22  and we will have a power point presentation on the

         23  screen as I go along. Good morning, Chair Lappin,

         24  Honorable Council Members, I'm Bob Tierney, Chairman

         25  of the Landmarks Preservation Commission and I'm
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          2  here today to testify strongly in favor of the

          3  Commission's designation of the Fieldston Historic

          4  District in the Bronx.

          5                 Fieldston is one of the City's most

          6  beautiful and well- planned early twentieth century

          7  suburban communities and stands proudly --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Excuse me,

          9  Madam Chair, could you ask Mr. Tierney to speak up

         10  and put the microphone near. I can hardly hear.

         11                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: How is that Oliver?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Council Member

         14  Koppell, excuse me. I'm sorry. And stands proudly

         15  among the country's most significant suburban

         16  developments. This is the ninth and largest district

         17  the Commission has designated in the Bronx. As you

         18  all know, over the past few years, the Landmarks

         19  Commission has made considerable efforts to

         20  designate individual landmarks and historic

         21  districts in all five boroughs, particularly in the

         22  Bronx, Staten Island and Queens.

         23                 Fieldston is one of the districts

         24  that has been at the top of my personal list, if you

         25  will, because of its unique character and
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          2  topography, rich palette of materials and

          3  architectural integrity. This neighborhood

          4  epitomizes what a historic district is and should

          5  be. You walk in this district, as many of the

          6  members of this Committee have, and you know you are

          7  in a special place. It has a sense of place that is

          8  unlike anywhere else in this City. I will briefly

          9  present the history and architecture of the district

         10  and then, of course, be happy to answer your

         11  questions.

         12                 As the map shows, the Fieldston

         13  Historic District, consisting of 257 buildings, is

         14  bounded roughly by West 250th Street to the north,

         15  Manhattan College Parkway to the south, Henry Hudson

         16  Parkway to the east and Tibbett Avenue to the west.

         17  With the exception of a few buildings along the

         18  Henry Hudson Parkway, the historic district

         19  encompasses all of the land known as Fieldston.

         20                 In 1829, Major Joseph Delafield

         21  purchased 257 acres of land as a vacation spot for

         22  his family in the area now known as Fieldston. The

         23  area remained undeveloped until 1849 when the steam-

         24  powered New York Central Railroad reached from New

         25  York City to Poughkeepsie along the Hudson. A
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          2  station at Van Cortland Park was accessible from

          3  Grand Central Terminal in about 40 minutes, which

          4  provided an incentive for more homes to be built in

          5  this vicinity.

          6                 Until 1874, the entire area of

          7  Riverdale actually, which included Fieldston, was

          8  part of West Chester county. At this time, the land

          9  south of Yonkers was annexed to New York City as the

         10  24th Ward, becoming part of Bronx County. After

         11  consolidation in 1898, Fieldston, like its

         12  neighboring sections, formed part of the borough of

         13  the Bronx. Interest in the area grew after the IRT

         14  subway reached West 242nd Street in 1908. With

         15  easier and less expensive access to New York City

         16  available, Delafield's heirs decided it was time to

         17  start developing the property. I guess times have

         18  not changed.

         19                 Civil engineer Albert E. Wheeler, who

         20  had worked with Frederick Law Olmsted and James R.

         21  Croes on an 1876 plan for Fieldston, was hired to

         22  begin laying out streets and installing utilities.

         23  The Delafield Estate retained total ownership of the

         24  area, including the roads, allowing them to avoid

         25  the standard grid system that had been imposed on
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          2  much of the rest of New York City.

          3                 In 1910, the first lots were sold

          4  with construction of the first house begun in 1911.

          5  Originally, the estate sold no lot that was next to

          6  another to allow more space for each home and also

          7  to spread the development throughout the whole area.

          8  Deed restrictions in place at the time required

          9  purchasers to buy at least three lots, at an average

         10  price of $5,000 each. Individual homes had to cost

         11  at least $8,000, and their designs had to be pre-

         12  approved. There could be no businesses, no two-

         13  family homes or apartment buildings.

         14                 By 1913 and '14, 18 houses had been

         15  constructed and by 1922 there were 80. Fieldston

         16  quickly became known for its fine houses set in a

         17  lovely landscaped setting. Residences were

         18  frequently featured in periodicals like House and

         19  Garden, House Beautiful, as well as significant

         20  architectural magazines such as the Architectural

         21  Record. The early houses were designed in historical

         22  revival styles, the most popular type throughout the

         23  country at the time. They were also placed on their

         24  lots to take advantage of the existing rock

         25  outcroppings and large trees.
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          2                 The Delafields sought to encourage

          3  the use of certain architects in the development,

          4  although there were no requirement to do so. Some of

          5  those working in the development during the early

          6  years included Mann & MacNeille, Nathaniel Vickers,

          7  George Chichester and Harrie T. Lindeberg. The work

          8  of these architects tended to be very picturesque,

          9  often incorporating design elements from the

         10  Medieval Revival, or Craftsman styles that were

         11  popular at the time. Some examples of these early

         12  houses include 311 West 245th Street, 1913 and '14,

         13  Mann & MacNeille, a modest Medieval Revival style

         14  residents faced with stone featuring a prominent

         15  slate covered hipped roof with numerous shed dormers

         16  and gables; 4455 Tibbett Avenue, (1911, Nathaniel

         17  Vickers), a Craftsman style house with a hipped tile

         18  roof, stone base and stucco above, and 4711

         19  Fieldston Road, (1913, Harrie Lindeberg), a Medieval

         20  Revival style house with an unusual and highly

         21  picturesque stone stoop, nicely sited on a sloping

         22  lot.

         23                 In 1922, '23, members of the

         24  Delafield Estate determined that the development was

         25  not returning the desired amount on their investment
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          2  and they decided to liquidate their remaining land

          3  holdings. During this time, residents of Fieldston

          4  created the Fieldston Property Owners Association,

          5  Inc. in order to continue the original goals of

          6  private residential development. The FPOA collected

          7  money from Fieldston residents and bought the

          8  remaining unsold property in Fieldston from the

          9  Delafield Estate. They established an Architectural

         10  Committee to review and approve plans for any new

         11  homes, requiring that all new structures be designed

         12  by one of eleven design firms.

         13                 The approval group of architects,

         14  chosen for their known expertise in residential

         15  design included Dwight James Baum, Julius Gregory,

         16  Lewis Bowman, Roger H. Bullard, Frank Forster and I

         17  won't read them all. This list is in the prepared

         18  testimony that you will have. This list was not the

         19  final word, however. Some on the list designed no

         20  houses in the area at all, and other buildings were

         21  designed by architects not appearing on the list.

         22  Dwight Baum (who was credited with 62 extant houses

         23  in the district) was the most popular of the group,

         24  followed by Julius Gregory who designed 42, W.

         25  Stanwood Phillips who designed 14. Having a large
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          2  number of houses designed by a few architects

          3  provided a visual consistency to the area which

          4  remains evident today.

          5                 Of the 257 houses in the district,

          6  more than 200 were built before 1940. All of the

          7  architects working in the district during the 20's

          8  and 30's followed contemporary architectural trends

          9  and created houses based on earlier precedents, with

         10  a wealth of historically based details. The

         11  classical or colonial revival houses featured

         12  elements such as elaborately leaded fan and side

         13  lights around the doors, pediments, keystones and

         14  balustrades. While the facing material was often

         15  wood clapboards, brick and occasionally stone facing

         16  was also used.

         17                 An example of a colonial style

         18  revival house within the district is 4930- 4960

         19  Goodridge Avenue (Dwight James Baum). This L- shaped

         20  house features a segmental pediment above the main

         21  entryway, double- height pilasters, bracketed

         22  cornices and segmental wall dormers. The Dutch

         23  Colonial Revival style house at 4561 Fieldston Road

         24  (Dwight James Baum, 1917) features a cut fieldstone

         25  base, splayed brick window lintels, flared gambrel
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          2  roof, and fieldstone end chimneys.

          3                 A fine example of a Georgian Revival

          4  style house can be seen at 355 College Road (1912,

          5  Phillips). This is a brick faced, symmetrically

          6  designed house with an elaborate door surround

          7  featuring a broken pediment. Another Georgian

          8  Revival style house is 407 West 246th Street

          9  (another Dwight James Baum), which has brick facing,

         10  is symmetrically designed with flanking one- story

         11  wings and has an elaborate columned entry portico.

         12  Number 4730 Fieldston Road (Julius Gregory, 1929),

         13  also Georgian Revival style is a large symmetrically

         14  designed stone- faced house with an elaborate

         15  central entrance featuring a door with sidelights

         16  and fanlight under a gabled wood portico carried on

         17  columns.

         18                 Picturesque Tudor Revival and

         19  Medieval Revival style homes were also very popular

         20  in the district. A large house in this style is No.

         21  5000 Fieldston Road (1921 and '28, alteration by

         22  Stanwood Phillips), a grand Tudor Revival style

         23  house with half- timbering, stone door surrounds,

         24  huge chimneys, projecting oriel windows and other

         25  groups of small, casement windows with leaded glass.
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          2  The complex footprint, intersecting roofs, circular

          3  tower and half- timbered walls of 4684 Grosvenor

          4  Avenue (which is Renwick, Aspinwall and Guard, 1927)

          5  represents the hallmarks of the Tudor Revival style.

          6  In addition, the house at 355 West 246th (Mann and

          7  MacNeille, 1911) features fieldstone and stucco-

          8  coated facades, false half- timbering, slate shingle

          9  covered gable roofs and large chimneys.

         10                 Examples of the Medieval Revival

         11  style include 4425 Tibbett Avenue (Herman Kaplan), a

         12  stone faced house with deeply set, small paned

         13  windows and a steep, slate covered roof with

         14  numerous gables and 4538 Greystone, a picturesque

         15  design with rough stucco walls, irregularly shaped,

         16  steeply pitched slate covered roofs and a small

         17  tower with a conical roof.

         18                 A variation of the Medieval

         19  picturesque design can be found at No. 4600

         20  Fieldstone Road (Dwight James Baum, 1926), large and

         21  impressive Norman Revival style house, faced partly

         22  in stucco and partly in stone with a variety of

         23  prominent hipped roofs on a complexly massed

         24  structure. It is fronted by a rounded tower faced in

         25  stone with a conical roof that holds the main
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          2  entrance. Another Norman Revival style house is 4720

          3  Grosvenor Avenue (Frank Forster, 1927), which is

          4  distinguished by its sprawling castle like

          5  appearance and prominent corner tower.

          6                 Another picturesque style that is

          7  found in the district is the Spanish or

          8  Mediterranean Revival style characterized by such

          9  elements as tile roofs, stucco walls, iron balconies

         10  and round arched window and door openings. This

         11  style can be found at 4621 Waldo Avenue (Dwight

         12  James Baum). It is faced with stucco with a shallow,

         13  tile- covered hipped roof. The house at 4560

         14  Fieldston Road (Dwight James Baum, 1927) has arched

         15  fenestration, wrought iron balconies, low- pitched

         16  roof, and multi- pane casement windows, all

         17  hallmarks of the Mediterranean Revival style.

         18                 We are getting to the end of the

         19  slides and I'm not doing all 257 buildings, you will

         20  be happy to hear. The Craftsman style, but there is

         21  so many that I feel compelled to keep going. The

         22  Craftsman style based on ideas promoted in Gustav

         23  Stickley's Craftsman magazine, combines some

         24  picturesque elements of the Medieval Revival with

         25  the more squared, regular massing of the Colonial
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          2  Revival and was very popular in the 1910 and 1920's.

          3  One example of a Craftsman style house can be found

          4  at 335 West 246th (George Chichester), a large house

          5  with rough stone facing on the basement and first

          6  story, stucco on the second, grouped windows,

          7  exposed rafter ends and an entry porch sheltering

          8  the main entry.

          9                 Another Craftsman style house is at

         10  4475 Waldo which also has rough stone facing on the

         11  two lowest stories with stucco above. There is a

         12  stone chimney as well as a stone entry port

         13  shielding the entrance. Dwight Baum's own residence

         14  at No. 5011 Waldo Avenue is probably one of the best

         15  known houses in the neighborhood and has been

         16  featured in several publications. Its broadly

         17  overhanging eaves and wide columns supporting a side

         18  porch are typical Craftsman style details.

         19                 Baum and his wife visited in

         20  Fieldston and received a tour by the a fore

         21  mentioned Edward Delafield. And immediately taken

         22  with the neighborhood, they purchased this lot,

         23  constructed their home, which they called Sunnybank.

         24  In 1915, Baum opened an architectural office in this

         25  house and then moved it adjacent to the Fieldston
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          2  sales office at the corner of 246th Street and

          3  Waldo. This made it easy for anyone at that time

          4  buying a lot in Fieldston to simply walk across to

          5  Baum's office to design a new house (which is why

          6  Baum is the most prolific designer in the

          7  development).

          8                 An article in Architecture in March

          9  1923, described Baum as "a recognized leader among

         10  the younger men in the designing of suburban and

         11  country houses, and his work has invariably shown

         12  refinement and good taste." In that year, he also

         13  received the Gold Medal from the Architectural

         14  League of New York, the youngest architect ever to

         15  do so. In 1932, his design for a home at 4521

         16  Delafield Avenue won the Gold Medal for the best

         17  two- story house built in the United States between

         18  the years 1926 and 1930, an award given by the

         19  American Institute of Architects.

         20                 Although, the majority of the homes

         21  in the district were constructed before 1940, as I

         22  have said, some were built later in the 20th

         23  century. During the 50s, 60s, and 70s, architects

         24  working in Fieldston often created buildings using a

         25  mid- twentieth century modern vocabulary. These
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          2  buildings did not draw from historical precedents

          3  and had very little applied ornament. Their simple

          4  massing, geometric forms and natural materials

          5  created the primary sense of design. This type

          6  included such house as 4750 Iselin Avenue (built in

          7   '66), a one- story house faced with areas of stone

          8  and brick, with a central entrance gable marked by a

          9  shallow pitched roof with broadly overhanging eaves.

         10                 Number 4660 Waldo, a wood- faced

         11  house with glassed in areas under the gables that is

         12  set on its lot in an unusual manner, with a bridge

         13  over a ravine to reach the building and finally,

         14  4601 Delafield Avenue (Harry Meltzer), which

         15  featured stained wood siding, windows with large

         16  single- pane sashes and a complex angled roof

         17  profile free of applied ornament. While the details

         18  of these houses differed, they share a common sense

         19  of proportion and a way of settling into this

         20  wonderful landscape. They were set on their lots to

         21  take advantage of the topography as always has been

         22  the practice in Fieldston, and driveway and walkway

         23  access were often artfully arranged. This awareness

         24  of accommodation to the natural surroundings is one

         25  of the qualities that make Fieldston such a unique
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          2  neighborhood.

          3                 Today, the significantly intact

          4  buildings in the Fieldston Historic District create

          5  a unique sense of place, incorporating a large

          6  number of architect design houses with a rich

          7  palette of materials set amidst winding tree- lined

          8  streets and dramatic rock outcroppings. Its

          9  picturesque, historical revival style architecture

         10  set in a landscaped setting epitomizes suburban

         11  development in the United States and of course in

         12  New York City, during the early part of the 20th

         13  century. We are going to leave that up, but that

         14  concludes my lengthy discussion of those wonderful

         15  slides.

         16                 That was not wise that I was

         17  concluding my remarks. The is probably the first and

         18  only time I may be applauded for such remarks. But

         19  anyway, the Landmarks Preservation Commission held

         20   -- now the rest of my testimony very briefly. The

         21  Landmarks Preservation Commission held a public

         22  hearing on the proposed designation of the Fieldston

         23  Historic District on December 2, 2003. Twenty- six

         24  people spoke in favor of designation, including City

         25  Council Member Oliver G. Koppell, the Chair of the
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          2  Riverdale Nature Preservancy, a representative of

          3  the Society for the Architecture of the City, a

          4  representative of the Historic Districts Council and

          5  22 homeowners.

          6                 Council Member Koppell read a letter

          7  in support of the designation from State Assemblyman

          8  Jeffrey Dinowitz. One person took no position. There

          9  were nine speakers opposed to designation at that

         10  time, at that hearing, including eight homeowners

         11  and a representative of the Horace Mann School. The

         12  Commission kept the record open for seven days after

         13  the hearing. In addition to the testimony, the

         14  Commission received an additional 33 letters, faxes

         15  or e- mails, representing 41 people in favor of

         16  designation (not including anyone who had

         17  testified), including a letter from the Bronx

         18  Historical Society and 30 letters, faxes or e-

         19  mails, representing 36 people in opposition to

         20  designation (also not including anyone who

         21  testified).

         22                 Subsequent to closing the public

         23  record, the Commission received five letters, faxes

         24  or e- mails in support of designation from people

         25  not yet on record including a resolution from Bronx
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          2  Community Board 8, dated December 13, 2005, and four

          3  letters, faxes or e- mails opposed the designation

          4  from people not yet on record. A petition in

          5  opposition to designation and requesting a

          6  postponement of the vote, signed by numerous

          7  Fieldston residents was submitted on January 10,

          8  2006.

          9                 On February 22, 2006, the City

         10  Planning Commission held a public hearing on the

         11  Fieldston Historic District designation. There were

         12  20 speakers in favor of the application including

         13  Council Member Koppell, representatives of the

         14  Landmarks Conservancy, the Fine Arts Federation, the

         15  Historic Districts Council, the American Institute

         16  of Architects, the Municipal Arts Society, the

         17  Horace Mann School, the Riverdale Nature Preservancy

         18  and various property owners. There were six

         19  neighborhood residents who spoke in opposition to

         20  the designation.

         21                 There has been some misinformation

         22  circulating about the Commission that I would like

         23  to briefly address and before I conclude my prepared

         24  remarks and take this opportunity, I hope to clarify

         25  a few points. First, the Landmarks Commission allows
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          2  homeowners to make changes to their buildings. It

          3  sounds like a self- evident thing to say, an obvious

          4  thing to say, but I feel compelled to say it because

          5  there is sometimes, there is often, not often, some

          6  misperception that once a building is landmarked it

          7  is frozen in aspect and time, whatever the metaphor

          8  you want that is used. It is not true. It is

          9  absolutely untrue. The Commission regulates change

         10  happily, flexibly. It does not prevent change.

         11                 We issued as this Committee well

         12  knows with your monitoring and oversight of this

         13  Commission, we issued over 9,000 permits a year.

         14  Those permits are for changes on designated

         15  buildings; many of them residential buildings, of

         16  course. For the Douglaston Historic District in

         17  Queens, for example, another single family

         18  residential district, the Commission has issued 44

         19  permits for major rooftop, rear yard and side yard

         20  additions since the district was designated in 1997.

         21  Single family houses often have a need for expansion

         22  and the Commission is well aware of that. Totally

         23  aware of it and it is our practice to allow and

         24  accommodate such expansion provided it is

         25  appropriate. We are following the law and our
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          2  regulations. But our disposition is not to be anti-

          3  change, anti- growth, anti- anything. We are pro-

          4  preservation. For every proposed addition, the

          5  Commission looks at the context, the scale and

          6  materials to determine that any new addition is

          7  appropriate to the house and the historic district

          8  as a whole.

          9                 Second, some opponents claim that the

         10  designation report for the Fieldston District has

         11  inaccuracies that somehow undermine the Commission's

         12  designation. Absolutely not. And let me briefly

         13  explain why none of this designates Fieldston's

         14  distinct sense of place and architectural and

         15  historic significance. I think it can be best

         16  understood if I describe the process of how we

         17  created our Fieldston designation report and then we

         18  can get into the specific claims that have been

         19  made.

         20                 The designation process is by its

         21  very nature collaborative. In addition to the

         22  Commission's public hearing in December 2003, we

         23  have been meeting with Fieldston residents and the

         24  community for more than three years to talk about

         25  the Commission's designation and regulatory
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          2  processes. I, we, all of us have attended several

          3  community board meetings and had many meetings with

          4  individual owners. In the final stages of the

          5  designation process, the Commission sent out (as we

          6  always do) draft building descriptions to each

          7  property owner in Fieldston. For each of the 257

          8  buildings included in the district, our research

          9  department documented, if known, the year that it

         10  was built, the architect, who it was built for, the

         11  style of the building and subsequent alterations

         12  that were filed at the Buildings Department, for

         13  which we have a concrete discernible public record.

         14                 Then we described, in detail, the

         15  building's current appearance. And this is what we

         16  do on all of our historic designations. There is

         17  nothing unusual here at all. We describe in detail

         18  the building's current appearance. Since we do not

         19  trespass on anyone's private property, of course,

         20  the description was done from the street and those

         21  who have walked around Fieldston know the context

         22  that I'm talking about. It was done from the street.

         23  And about a month before the Commission brought this

         24  proposal back for a public meeting for a vote, all

         25  of these draft description entries were sent to the
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          2  257 homeowners for their review. Here is our

          3  description as best we can tell based on all the

          4  things I've told you.

          5                 We send the entries to the owners for

          6  the express purpose of clarifying or correcting any

          7  of the information. We are as much as I sometimes,

          8  well, I never think it, but some people think we are

          9  omniscient or error free or absolute perfectionist,

         10  we're not. It's not intended to be at this stage of

         11  the process. The purpose of this is collaborative

         12  and cooperative and here is our best sense, please

         13  tell us where we might be off base or maybe have

         14  made a perception that needs to be clarified. That's

         15  the way it works. A process that we use for all of

         16  our designation reports whether the Commission is

         17  voting on an individual landmark or on a historic

         18  district here because there are 257 houses in a

         19  historic district. The number of corrections, if you

         20  will, whatever you want to call them is of necessity

         21  larger than it would be if it is single historic

         22  designation. It sort of follows from logically.

         23                 After the letters went out, 82 owners

         24  contacted us in response to the draft building

         25  entries they received. Many owners contacted us with
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          2  questions about their entries and did not have

          3  specific corrections. People asked us to define

          4  architectural terms included in their description

          5  such as some of the things I have been saying

          6  earlier or asked additional questions about the

          7  Commission's designation and regulatory process. In

          8  fact, most of the comments we received from owners

          9  were to correct minor inaccuracies or discrepancies,

         10  if you will.

         11                 For example, and here is the example

         12  of what those are. I don't think this is

         13  unrepresentative. I think it is a fair sampling. One

         14  owner preferred that an addition above the garage be

         15  called an extension rather than a garage wing. So we

         16  made the change. There is no reason not to. Another

         17  owner asked that we refer to the roof color as

         18  oxford and gray as opposed to brown and gray. We

         19  made the change. Several people asked us to include

         20  information about a deck or heating equipment, for

         21  example, at the non- visible portion of the house

         22  that our Research Department would not have been

         23  able to see from the street and would not have

         24  included in the report. Other owners told us that

         25  features we thought were historic were in fact
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          2  reproductions or only a few years old. As I stated,

          3  a small number of those, as I stated the Research

          4  Department views these features from the street and

          5  uses their best judgment as to what is historic and

          6  what is not.

          7                 For all of these comments, we

          8  responded to the owners and in most cases, we made

          9  the requested minor revisions to the report in order

         10  to reflect this new information, where appropriate.

         11  For those comments we received after the report was

         12  finalized and printed, we have included a note in

         13  the building file at the Commission so that any work

         14  that is ever done on these residents as going

         15  forward, that is the basis, that is the starting

         16  point, the basis for such work. If an owner's

         17  comment was inaccurate finally, such as telling us

         18  that their house was built by a certain architect

         19  when the Building's Department files indicates

         20  another architect, we obviously did not include

         21  that, it goes without saying, this in the final

         22  report.

         23                 Again, none of these clarifications

         24  detract in anyway from the overall validity of the

         25  Fieldston Historic District designation that you see
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          2  here and that I have been trying to talk about with

          3  as much passion and strength as I can muster about

          4  this. Because I really feel that it is a compelling

          5  case to be made. I hope for those that have seen the

          6  district in person and through my presentation

          7  today, the architectural and historic significance

          8  of this neighborhood will be undeniable. I thank you

          9  again for taking perhaps more time than I normally

         10  would, for your time and obviously answer any

         11  questions you may have. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. Before

         13  we open it up to questions, I want to just recognize

         14  the members of the Committee who are here. Council

         15  Member Barron, Council Member Mendez, Council Member

         16  Martinez, Council Member Comrie and Council Member

         17  Liu. We are also joined by Council Member Koppell.

         18  This is within his district. And Council Member

         19  Arroyo is going back and forth between this hearing

         20  and the Yankees Stadium hearing.

         21                 I also want to state just a

         22  housekeeping item that everybody who is here today

         23  who signed up to testify will have an opportunity to

         24  testify. We are going to have panels come up in

         25  alternating fashions. We are going to have a two
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          2  minute time limit and that clock up there reflects

          3  that. Before we open up to questions, I did want to

          4  give Council Member Koppell an opportunity because

          5  this is in his district to make a very brief

          6  statement.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you

          8  very much, Madam Chair and I promise to be brief.

          9  Let me first thank you and the members of the

         10  Committee and also Chair Melinda Katz for her

         11  attention to this matter. It is very important to me

         12  as the representative of the district, I know it is

         13  very important to my constituents and I appreciate

         14  the time that you, the Committee staff has taken. I

         15  appreciate the number of members including you,

         16  Madam Chair, coming to Fieldston and looking at it

         17  yourself and touring the area. I know a number of my

         18  colleagues has done the same, some with me and I

         19  think some separately from me.

         20                 I live in Fieldston. One of the

         21  houses shown is the house that my wife, Lorraine,

         22  who happens to be here and I live in. I do not

         23  believe that that prevents from participating in

         24  this proceedings and I have checked that with the

         25  ethics experts and I'm not prohibited from
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          2  proceeding. I am not a member anymore,

          3  unfortunately, because of changes in assignment of

          4  this subcommittee, although I served on the

          5  subcommittee and have a great personal commitment to

          6  Landmarking and to appropriate Land Use. As you know

          7  and I think my colleagues know, I'm a very, very

          8  strong supporter of Landmarking for the reasons that

          9  Chairman Tierney mentioned.

         10                 I want to thank him and the members

         11  of the Landmark Commission and the staff of the

         12  Landmark Commission for their tremendous attention

         13  to this matter. Anybody looking at this report which

         14  is hundreds of pages long knows how much time and

         15  attention has been devoted to an area that is very,

         16  very important to me. I have lived in Fieldston now

         17  for a dozen years, but I have lived in Riverdale

         18  virtually my entire life, more than 50 years. And

         19  the maintenance of Fieldston as a historic district

         20  is something that I want this Council to support

         21  because I would consider it, because I have worked

         22  on it and supported it from the beginning, as part

         23  of my contribution as an elected official from this

         24  area.

         25                 Let me simply also add that I'm
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          2  pleased that the State representatives who represent

          3  the area have all indicated their public support.

          4  Assemblyman Dinowitz who represents the whole area,

          5  State Senator Eric Schneiderman who represents part

          6  of Fieldston; State Senator Jeff Klein who

          7  represents the other part of Fieldston in the State,

          8  Senate and Borough President carry on have all

          9  indicated support for Landmarking. I also appreciate

         10  the support of the City Planning Commission and of

         11  the Bloomberg Administration which has indicated its

         12  support in pursuant to the vote of the Landmark

         13  Commission. Thank you. I'll stop here and look

         14  forward to hearing testimony. I know there is

         15  difference of view point and, of course, we will

         16  listen to that. But I want to reiterate that I feel

         17  very passionately in favor of the Council endorsing

         18  the vote of the Landmark Commission.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. While

         20  I do have question since we got the hearing started

         21  a little bit late, I do want to defer to my

         22  colleagues. Council Member Comrie, you had a

         23  question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair. Good afternoon, Commissioner.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Good afternoon.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I didn't think

          4  I would be so quick. I'm curious as to why there is

          5  opposition to it. Can you give me the background as

          6  to why there is 130 or so people that are opposed to

          7  the opposition? What is the context of that?

          8                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: First, there are

          9  two parts about the question that I can't --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Let me bring

         11  it down a little simpler.

         12                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: There was a

         14  period of time from January, I believe of '05 to now

         15  January of '06, and you said earlier that in your

         16  presentation that you gave each one of the 257

         17  homeowners an opportunity to make an assessment and

         18  do a response to you of what they thought their

         19  property reflected in your designation report.

         20                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What was the

         22  period of time when you got those responses from

         23  them?

         24                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Over a five or six

         25  week period, five week period, I think is the best

                                                            33

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  way to put it. In terms of what the opposition may

          3  be grounded on, I don't think that the responses and

          4  there are two or three different things going on.

          5  The responses to those as I stated in my testimony

          6  to our 257 entries on the specific houses, not all

          7  of those responses were from people who were

          8  opposed. There were some, of course. And they said

          9  not only did they point out what they thought were

         10  discrepancies in the description, but they also

         11  (some of them) said, by the way, I'm also against

         12  the designation.

         13                 I think people oppose historic

         14  designations here and in many cases throughout the

         15  City for good and conscientious reasons. People have

         16  philosophical views. I mean I can't characterize the

         17  specific reasons here. I think there might be many

         18  different reasons that some of the people who are in

         19  opposition might bring to the table.  My hope is

         20  that some of it is because perhaps I haven't done as

         21  good of a job of communicating that the Landmark

         22  Commission does, flexible regulation, that we're

         23  here to encourage change, not to prevent it and so

         24  on. I think there might be misperceptions that lead

         25  to opposition. I can't say that in every case. I
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          2  don't want to pre- judge why people may be opposed

          3  or not opposed.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Presently,

          5  there is now a covenant for that area and, I forget

          6  what they call it, an internal self- preservation

          7  mechanism through their association.

          8                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: There is a

          9  Fieldston Property Owners Association that perhaps

         10  Council Member Koppell could speak specifically too

         11  because of his personal experience with it, but my

         12  understanding is that Fieldston Property Owners

         13  Association does not regulate the kinds of things

         14  that the Landmarks Commission does.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Would

         16  the Landmarks Commission then overrule anything that

         17  the Historic Association has put in place?

         18                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Well, I'm not sure

         19  we would overrule anything that they put in place. I

         20  think that we would supplement it and I think they

         21  don't have protective, the kinds of guidelines that

         22  we would have and rules and regulations, if you

         23  will, would not be inconsistent with what the

         24  Fieldston property owners have had over the period

         25  of years. But they do not have the protections that
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          2  the law provides for historic districts and historic

          3  designations. Most significantly is the historic

          4  designation prevents demolition of homes. I don't

          5  believe that is currently the case in Fieldston.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Madam Chair,

          7  if I could make a brief comment. I'll try and be

          8  very brief.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: First of all,

         11  I don't want to get into a debate over the numbers,

         12  but I take issue with the 130 alleged opponents.

         13  I've reviewed petitions and I'm happy to sit down.

         14  First of all, nobody has given me -- I have received

         15  a copy of the petition from Chair Katz who had

         16  received that petition in mid- February. Allegedly

         17  there are other people who signed petitions

         18  subsequent. They have never been delivered to me

         19  even though I have invited that.

         20                 I would happy to sit down with

         21  whoever counted 130 because my staff counted a much

         22  lesser number and go over it person by person,

         23  property by property. Let me just say, I take issue

         24  with 130 number. Let me not mislead you, there are a

         25  significant number of opponents. I believe it is a
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          2  minority. Every vote that has been taken, has shown

          3  a strong minority against, but a majority in favor.

          4  That's number one. Number two, on the issue of the

          5  restrictive covenant and that's a very important

          6  question, as the Chair indicated when Fieldston was

          7  first formed, in the deeds there was a restriction

          8  that people couldn't either build or make

          9  alterations without approval.

         10                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Those deed

         12  restrictions and I have seen, personally seen,

         13  expired about 50 years ago. Nobody has shown me any

         14  way in which the Fieldston Property Owners

         15  Association can regulate either demolition or

         16  reconstruction or renovation. That's not in the

         17  deeds. Could it be voted on? Land Use lawyers I've

         18  spoken to and I'm not a Land Use lawyer, although I

         19  am a lawyer, have said in order for those deed

         20  restrictions to be effective, they would have to be

         21  unanimously adopted by members of the Fieldston

         22  Property Owners Association. I think that's

         23  impossible. That's just not going to happen.

         24                 Right now, I could tear down my house

         25  and build a new one even though it's one of the ones
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          2  that happen to be pictured. I could make whatever

          3  renovations, well I couldn't do it now because the

          4  Landmark Commission has designated it. But until

          5  January, I could have done that. If we turn down

          6  Landmark status so that is eliminated, I could do

          7  it. Tear down the house, or make any alteration I

          8  want and Fieldston Property Owners Association,

          9  which I pay a lot of money to, couldn't stop me.

         10                 As I said before, I believe that

         11  although perhaps technically, you could come to some

         12  agreement. It would require unanimous approval and I

         13  can assure you, it wouldn't get unanimous approval.

         14  The idea that FPOA which is Fieldston Property

         15  Owners Association, by the way we all have to join

         16  it. That still is in the deed.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That's still

         18  open?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The deed says

         20  that everybody who buys a house there has to join

         21  and pay dues. But the deed does not say that they

         22  can regulate renovation or reconstruction.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Let me --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Let me just

         25  preface my remarks which I didn't do. I've been to
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          2  Fieldston and I've had the wonderful opportunity to

          3  visit Oliver's home and I drove through the area

          4  twice since then. I wasn't able to make the trip. I

          5  think the area is worthy of general designation. My

          6  confusion, which I'm trying to elucidate is the

          7  issues of the FPOA and the ability of the area to

          8  stay historic versus the issue of integrity with the

          9  process. I'm not going to get into a 130 or 50 or

         10  whatever. A number is a number.

         11                 I'm not really trying to drive

         12  anything, but just trying to protect the Landmarks

         13  institution because if we are going to start

         14  landmarking properties and designating properties

         15  with the advent of visual presentation, there is

         16  technicalities in everything. Whether or not a pole

         17  is a pole is a pole or a walk is a walk is a walk,

         18  is something that needs to be elucidated as clearly

         19  as possible.

         20                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sure.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm not saying

         22  that it is not an easy attempt, but as I spoke up

         23  during our preliminary budget hearing, actually when

         24  you were being reappointed about the advent of

         25  digital cameras to clear up a lot of this stuff, I
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          2  think would help a long ways to getting that done.

          3                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sure.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I was just

          5  confused as to whether or not the FPOA and I

          6  understand the tenant/homeowners have to pay like

          7  $8,000 year fee on top of their taxes for FPOA. What

          8  is the position between the mission of FPOA once the

          9  property is landmarked?

         10                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: I think the

         11  Councilman has explained well. The protections we

         12  provided, that Landmarking provide, are not covered

         13  by the property owners. And the things he described,

         14  the ability to tear down or make inappropriate

         15  changes to a house would not be prevented by the

         16  Association short of designation. Let me also say in

         17  terms, I agree with you, of course, I'm not going to

         18  comment on the numbers and the petition, but

         19  indicators where we do have an indication of support

         20  is an overwhelming vote in the community board in

         21  favor of this (overwhelming), and I believe the

         22  Chair of the Community Board is here and maybe will

         23  be testifying later.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: He will be.

         25                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Also, City
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          2  Planning, not only an overwhelming vote, but also

          3  expressions from Ken Knuckles among others. Ken

          4  Knuckles represents -- Ken said it was the most

          5  important, most significant and I'm paraphrasing

          6  him, historic designation he had seen in all of his

          7  years on the City Planning Commission. But more

          8  importantly, the Community Board, I think,

          9  partially, doesn't speak for every homeowner as you

         10  have said, I think has support.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: In your

         12  report, do you normally indicate the specific

         13  letters of objection in your report so we could have

         14  a historic report?

         15                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: These letters that

         16  I delineated, 32 and 16 in that and so on, we're

         17  doing because specifically this way pursuant -- when

         18  did this start? There was a year or two ago, a year

         19  ago under your predecessors Chair of this Committee

         20  that there was some confusion if you will, about the

         21  exact precise nature of letters, personal testimony

         22  and when they were received and whether there was

         23  any duplication. I think this may have come up

         24  specifically and the one I'm trying to forget which

         25  is the 184 Kent Avenue. But I think it came up then.
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          2  There question was, exactly who said what when.

          3  That's why it sounds a little tedious. But that's

          4  the purpose of doing that is to make it absolutely

          5  crystal clear about what we're talking about.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: There was an

          7  article that I wanted to reference and so much has

          8  been passed my way and I can say overwhelmingly to

          9  my office like letters and support of this project

         10  and imminently understand and Councilman's Koppell's

         11  desire to make this a preservation district. I think

         12  that the area is a historic area. I think in light

         13  of all of that, it is incumbent upon all of us to

         14  try to do this by the book, so to say, and to make

         15  sure that we don't allow precedence that will happen

         16  that can harm the process later on. That's the only

         17  reason why I'm bringing these issues up because I

         18  don't want to all of a sudden go back to Richmond

         19  Hill and have various opinions or go back and have

         20  opinions that are not being heard and elucidated. Or

         21  go back to the other areas in the City that needs to

         22  be designated and because of lack of faith in the

         23  process, we lose a designation for an area.

         24                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sure. I understand

         25  that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That's what my

          3  overall concern is. Are there any homes in the 257

          4  homes that are way outside the purview of anything

          5  that could be called designated?

          6                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: As currently

          7  contemplated, everything in those boundaries which

          8  is all 257 homes would be part of the historic

          9  district. However, of the 257 somewhere in the range

         10  of approximately 30 are considered to be of, do not

         11  have a style. The significance of that is they are

         12  of lesser architectural and historic significance

         13  than we have described here. What is important also

         14  about that characterization and it is in the report

         15  is that homes can be altered and even demolished

         16  with the approval of the Commission. I'm not saying

         17  easily, not at the drop of a hat, but with a more

         18  flexible standard, if you will and then replaced by

         19  something that would go through the Commission. But

         20  there are these homes, I think, that's maybe the

         21  notion, so called no style. And there is at least 30

         22  of them and they would have a much more hands off,

         23  if you will, approach.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: They would

         25  keep that no style designation --
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          2                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: -- In

          4  perpetuity.

          5                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: That's right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Your

          7  designation covers what exactly? The exterior of the

          8  home or the exterior and the interior?

          9                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Exterior, no

         10  interiors here at all. The Commission does have the

         11  ability to designate interiors, but we're not doing

         12  it here.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Does the

         14  exterior require the unique setbacks beneath the

         15  wonderful outlet -- most of the homes in the area

         16  have like 20, 30 foot setbacks, no sidewalks. Is

         17  that all going to stay in tact?

         18                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: It would stay in

         19  tact, but our primary concern would be the actual

         20  residences themselves and the architectural features

         21  that I was talking about.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Make sure

         23  those stay in order.

         24                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: The landscape is

         25  separately protected, I believe through a special
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          2  natural area jurisdiction under the Parks

          3  Department. City Planning, excuse me, City Planning.

          4  Sorry.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: We approved

          6  also this special natural area district zoning which

          7  covers Fieldston and that covers things like trees,

          8  rock outcroppings, slopes and things. And we

          9  actually tightened the restrictions on that about a

         10  year ago with your support. Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I thought I

         12  remembered that. I just kind to want to put it on

         13  the record because again, I would love to own a

         14  house there one day. Charles and I looking at buying

         15  a house now. I think the area is really a beautiful

         16  opportunity to live in a sub- suburban setting

         17  within City environments. My major concern is to

         18  make sure that the process is correct. I don't mean

         19  to be nitpicking, but I'm concerned about what you

         20  and I know of things coming up down the line on

         21  other landmarking issues and the ability to make

         22  sure that it is done right.

         23                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that all

         25  of the issues are highlighted or at least factually
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          2  presented is a problem that we need to negate as

          3  much as possible. I know it is not easy for your

          4  agency. You don't have all the staffing that you

          5  need to have, in my opinion. I know a lot of times

          6  homeowners tend to wake up only at the 99th hour on

          7  specific details. But I think that overall, this is

          8  an area that deserves designation. With that Madam

          9  Chair, I won't ask anymore questions. I want to

         10  congratulate Council Member Koppell, and I look

         11  forward to my next invite to the house.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you Council

         13  Member Comrie. I wanted to piggyback before we move

         14  on to the next Council Member who has questions,

         15  because Chair of the Land Use Committee, Melinda

         16  Katz was here earlier and she had questions that

         17  were similar in the sense of that of my

         18  understanding is that the Fieldston Property Owners

         19  Association collectively owns the streets, the

         20  street trees, the sewers. Are there other private

         21  communities like this, Chairman Tierney in the City

         22  that have already been designated where there is an

         23  entity like the Fieldston Property Owners

         24  Association that controls privately owned streets or

         25  trees?
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          2                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: There are. Let me

          3  answer it the following way. There are designated

          4  areas and designated buildings that have private

          5  streets and I can enumerate them. Let me just maybe

          6  go through that part of it briefly. The Landmarks

          7  law or the practice of the Commission over 40 years

          8  does not prevent or proscribe designation of

          9  buildings fronting and private streets. We have a

         10  long history of designating such buildings;

         11  Rockefeller Center, Tudor City, Sniffen Court,

         12  Henderson Place are landmarks in historic districts;

         13  notwithstanding that they are front, at least in

         14  part, on private streets or walkways. Similarly, we

         15  have designated buildings that are not visible or

         16  only somewhat visible from a public way because they

         17  are located on large campuses such as Lowe Librarian

         18  (phonetic), St. Paul's Chapel of the Columbia, Astra

         19  Court and the Bronx Zoo.

         20                 Then we have Douglaston who does not

         21  have private streets, but it does have a Douglaston

         22  Homeowner's Association that I believe in some

         23  respects comparable to the Fieldston Property Owners

         24  Association. But it is not an exact match and I

         25  don't know exact match jumps to mind.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So we wouldn't

          3  even becoming close to setting a precedent?

          4                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: No.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Great.

          6                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Absolutely not.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

          8  Barron.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         10  much, Madam Chair. First I would like to ask, you

         11  know this landmarking process is much more than what

         12  I bargained for. I thought I would be sitting here

         13  and going over history and wonderful architectural

         14  information. I learned about the hyperbolic

         15  paraboloid and stuff like that. But now it has gone

         16  beyond that. My mixed feelings about landmarking

         17  because it could be used to hamper development and

         18  not allow private owners to develop on their own

         19  property, to expand their property. And another

         20  sense could preserve the character of the community

         21  and really allow for that historic preservation of

         22  the character of the community.

         23                 But on the question of, I think I'm

         24  kind of clear on what private owners can do in terms

         25  of altering their property. What can't they do? What
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          2  are some of the things?

          3                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Under Landmark

          4  jurisdiction, I think, I don't want to go through a

          5  litany of possible horrors, but just take any one of

          6  those houses, the idea of building a rooftop

          7  addition that was visible from the street and that

          8  was of a different style and totally inconsistent

          9  with what we're talking about in terms of the

         10  historic architecture of that house would be not

         11  only a stretch, it would not be allowed. Anything

         12  that you can actually see that alters it

         13  significantly --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So they won't

         15  be able to alter any part of the exterior?

         16                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes, you can. You

         17  can alter it with a permit of the Landmarks

         18  Commission for any appropriate change and

         19  appropriate change is basically change that is

         20  consistent with the architecture and the history of

         21  the building itself and the historic district. We

         22  allow change all the time. Those 9,000 permits, I

         23  talked about, are for people changing their

         24  building.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: As long as
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          2  they build the same roof that they have --

          3                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: The same or roughly

          4  comparable. We try to be pretty flexible in terms of

          5  what we allow.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Could they

          7  build an attachment?

          8                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes, we allow side

          9  attachments. We allow back attachments or extensions

         10  in the yard. In the back yard or on the sides, it is

         11  all a question of balance and sort of a threshold

         12  test is, do those attachments, do those changes so

         13  alter or affect or detract from the original house

         14  that it really changes it entirely. If it does, we

         15  tilt against it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I guess that's

         17  part of my mixed emotions about landmarking. Because

         18  I appreciate historic preservation, but also I

         19  appreciate the freedom for property owners to be

         20  allowed to have control over their property.

         21                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: That's a real

         23  challenge here I think within landmarking business.

         24  Because it really can be an infringement upon

         25  property owners on one hand.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And then on

          4  the other hand, certainly the City would want to

          5  preserve historic developments.

          6                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: I'm very mindful of

          7  that. It is a heavy responsibility. I don't take it

          8  lightly at all. Every property owner that comes

          9  before us and that are here in this room, I

         10  completely understand what you are saying. People's

         11  property is their property. There are governmental

         12  restrictions that hopefully are done prudently,

         13  sensibly and for the public good whether it is

         14  zoning or taxation or in this case, preservation.

         15  But I think they have got to very carefully,

         16  judiciously applied and through a public process, a

         17  process like this and a process we go through so

         18  that everyone has an opportunity to be heard and be

         19  able to weigh these factors that you have described

         20  so accurately and make the right decision. It is a

         21  decision that is honest and direct and based on the

         22  evidence.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, I have

         24  to got mention my pet peeve as I do in every

         25  Landmarking hearing.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Major Joseph

          4  Delafield --

          5                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: May I --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: -- 1829 --

          7                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: -- Slavery in

          9  New York City was from 1625 to around 1840 roughly.

         10                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Correct. Even

         11  though it is legally abolished in 1827 --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right, legally

         13  1827. We say illegally it continued to 1840, 1850.

         14                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sure.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: But legally,

         16  they say 1827. I just wanted to know is there

         17  anything going to be included on who did they buy

         18  this property from? What about the Native Americans

         19  and the in- slaved Africans? What were they doing

         20  around watching the purchasing the land? Did they

         21  exist? Did they have any connections to that and how

         22  come every time we historically document things and

         23  I'm not saying this should determine whether

         24  something is landmarked or not --

         25                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sure.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: -- But

          3  certainly it is right to include that part of

          4  history in the landmarking process. That is what

          5  this is basically about to capture history, to

          6  preserve history. And it's not to just architectural

          7  history, but also the people history. Also, what

          8  happened and what was going on at that time. Every

          9  time we have a hearing, black people just don't

         10  exist in any of these documents when it comes in the

         11  area of slavery and even if it was legally abolished

         12  in 1827, it did continue until 1840, 1850. So how

         13  come there is never any mention of that on anything

         14  that comes our way?

         15                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: The practice has

         16  been to not disprove or not to prove a negative and

         17  mention it. We do search and we do study and we do

         18  research that issue and other issues that we talked

         19  about and we did that in this case. No connection or

         20  historical connection was found. Therefore, --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: We're not

         22  trying to prove a negative. We're just trying to

         23  tell the truth.

         24                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Exactly.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Maybe it is
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          2  because you have 11 white researchers and maybe

          3  that's why they can't find it. Maybe if we had just

          4  like one or two, then maybe we will start finding

          5  it. Commissioner, I'm going to stay on this one

          6  every time it is presented because it is wrong. It

          7  is wrong not to have any black researchers on the

          8  Landmarks Commission and it is wrong to never be

          9  able to find anything. I mean even if you made a

         10  general proposition like in the area once lived.

         11                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: If it were found

         12  that would be in the report.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: How could they

         14  not find it?

         15                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: If that was true,

         16  it would be in the report.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: How could they

         18  not find it? I mean the area wasn't void of anybody

         19  until he came. It wasn't like there was just nothing

         20  there, no people there, no history there and he just

         21  popped up and purchased the land. So no historian

         22  can say nothing happened until Major Joseph

         23  Delafield came in 1829 and purchased it. You can't

         24  possibly say nothing was going on. If something was

         25  going on, we need to know, Commissioner. We need to
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          2  know.

          3                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: It could be it was

          4  unoccupied -- it wasn't residential land that was

          5  purchased. It basically in 1829, it was wild land in

          6  the Bronx. No one was living there. It wasn't in the

          7  Bronx then, it was in  western --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, tell

          9  that to the Native Americans that no one was ever

         10  here. See that's the same thing that Christopher

         11  Columbus thought that nobody was here and he

         12  discovered this place.

         13                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: On this plot --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I understand

         15  the plot. You just need to know also that

         16  Christopher Columbus came and said nobody was here,

         17  I guess I'll discover this place. It didn't matter

         18  that people had been here for a long time and maybe

         19  we need a new kind of historical approach to this.

         20  But Commissioner, I'll let it go until the next

         21  hearing.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         23  Katz who is Chair of the Land Use Committee.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Good afternoon,

         25  Commissioner.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Good afternoon.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I apologize to

          4  you and to everyone here for not being here during

          5  your testimony. You and I have had several

          6  discussions about Fieldston as I have had with many

          7  of the folks in this room, most of which I've gotten

          8  to, some of which have called and just the time

          9  frame has been crazy. We have the Yankees next door

         10  and so I'm in there at the moment as well. I just

         11  have two very quick questions. As you know and as

         12  Councilman Koppell knows and the Chair of the

         13  Landmarks Committee, I represent the Forest Hills

         14  Gardens and I know that Council Member Lappin sort

         15  of brought it up in a round about way. Just two

         16  questions so I'm comfortable for the record and just

         17  so my constituents are comfortable as well. I know

         18  that you went through some of the private

         19  communities that are historical districts already.

         20                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Committees on

         21  private streets, yes, that's right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: They are

         23  historical districts?

         24                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Some of them are

         25  historic districts, that's right. But yes, Tudor
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          2  City is one of them which is a historic district

          3  even though it is a series of buildings. Not a huge

          4  neighborhood, of course, but they are historic

          5  districts, correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I think I'm

          7  right in this that not all their streets can be seen

          8  by streets that are not part of the private

          9  community. I mean, there are certain areas that are

         10  enclosed, but not everything can be seen from the

         11  public streets.

         12                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes, that's true.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: That's correct,

         14  right?

         15                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: That's correct,

         16  yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Clearly, one of

         18  my concerns is the Gardens, as far as those Gardens

         19  in setting a precedent for there. Do you find a

         20  great number of similarities between the two areas

         21  or does the restrictive deed covenant that is still

         22  in place in the Gardens make a distinction to you in

         23  your mind as to the precedent set by Fieldston?

         24                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: It definitely makes

         25  a distinction in my mind about that issue. No
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          2  question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: My understanding

          4  is that unlike the Gardens, the covenant in

          5  Fieldston has been gone from the deeds for about 40,

          6  50 years?

          7                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: That's right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right. I

          9  appreciate your time and effort over the last few

         10  months on this and the discussions that we have had.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you,

         14  Chairwoman Katz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can I

         16  congratulate Jessica Lappin for her first few

         17  months? This is sort of, I don't know what you call

         18  it, by fire and she has done a great job. No, she

         19  hasn't gotten gray hairs yet, Leroy.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Actually, they

         21  are coming in faster than you would think.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Congratulations

         23  to Jessica, you've done a great job on this.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. I just

         25  have a couple of quick questions because I know
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          2  there are a lot of people here to testify. One, is

          3  it unusual to have as you do in Fieldston and in

          4  your report, a number of different architects and a

          5  number of different architectural styles?

          6                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Not at all.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Just to be clear,

          8  if somebody who was a property owner within the

          9  Fieldston Historic District wanted to enlarge their

         10  home, as long as the addition was in keeping with

         11  the style, they would be allowed to enlarge their

         12  home. Is that correct?

         13                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: They would come

         14  into the Commission and they would go through a

         15  process that would permit the enlargement of the

         16  homes, right, if it is appropriate. As you said, in

         17  keeping with the style and so that it didn't

         18  overwhelm or detract from the basic structure

         19  itself. But it would clearly be permitted. We permit

         20  it all the time, enlargement of homes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And not a minor

         22  change, but a significant alteration or enlargement,

         23  how long are we talking in terms of the approval

         24  process?

         25                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: It can be very --
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          2  it's a range. Obviously, the more significant the

          3  changes, it probably will require going to the full

          4  Commission for "public hearing." Even that can be

          5  expedited. I take some proud in the fact that we

          6  have really cranked things up in terms of issuing

          7  permits, doing them in a timely fashion. I can't

          8  give you a ballpark. It would depend on when the

          9  application was complete, the nature of the thing

         10  and so on. But there is no reason why it couldn't be

         11  done in a few months at the outside, at the outside.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. Council

         13  Member Mendez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Good

         15  afternoon, Chairman Tierney.

         16                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Good afternoon.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I just have a

         18  couple of questions. Refresh my recollection you

         19  said about 30 buildings is it had no styles?

         20                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: That's correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Council Member

         22  Barron had asked and I didn't recall if you gave an

         23  answer to this. Do we know who they purchased the

         24  property from? Like this wasn't part of the City,

         25  the Delafield.

                                                            60

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Oh, back in 1829?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: I'm checking with

          5  my Head of Research, we don't know who it was

          6  purchased from. It was not the City. But I'm just

          7  informed and Diana is going to look it up and it is

          8  actually in the designation report.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I know when we

         10  were at the tour, you did inform us as you said now

         11  that additions can be made to properties. If someone

         12  wanted to demolish an addition, that also would be

         13  appropriate?

         14                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Demolish an

         15  addition?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Right.

         17                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: It would depend on

         18   -- it can be appropriate, yes, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay. Thank

         20  you very much.

         21                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sure. May I answer

         22  your question? I'm afraid it's not going to be very

         23  enlightening. But in 1829, Major Joseph Delafield

         24  purchased 257 acres of land from William Hadley.

         25  That's all we know. But we do know in terms I didn't
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          2  have a chance to finish the explanation, but we did

          3  the slavery issue and its implications was explored

          4  and not presented in this case.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Mr. Chairman,

          6  I hate to correct you, but your own report indicates

          7  that the property was originally owned by the Dutch

          8  which I knew because --

          9                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sorry about that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: -- This was

         11  all owned by Dutch in the Hudson Valley. It was

         12  owned at one time by the well- known Phillips

         13  Family. Phillips Manor you may be aware of. It goes

         14  all the way up until West Chester. Your report

         15  indicates that the Phillips Family sold it to Hadley

         16  or it was confiscated --

         17                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: That's right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: -- I think

         19  from the Phillips family and then sold to Hadley. It

         20  goes to back to the Dutch --

         21                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: -- Who settled

         23  the whole Hudson River --

         24                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: -- Hudson
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          2  Valley area including this Adriana Vanderdonk

          3  (phonetic) and also Van Cortland as well as

          4  Phillips. They were the original owners of this

          5  whole area going way up into West Chester.

          6                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Good point. And I

          7  was focusing on actually where Delafield got it, but

          8  that's even better. Thank you, Councilman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I have one last

         10   --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I just

         12  realized. Charles isn't here, but he would have

         13  really gotten me. Before the Dutch, I'm sure the

         14  Native Americans controlled the area and we

         15  shouldn't ignore that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Before the Dutch,

         17  I think we can safely say the Native Americans

         18  probably controlled the area.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And there was

         20  an Indian settlement just across in Manhattan.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. One

         22  last question, Commissioner Tierney, if the Council

         23  approves the designation because there are a large

         24  number of homes within, would the Landmarks

         25  Preservation Commission come up with some guidelines
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          2  to make it more timely, more efficient --

          3                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes, we will.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: -- For people to

          5  make changes that warrant major significant

          6  alterations.

          7                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: That's correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And those will be

          9  done in consultation with the members of the

         10  community and have an opportunity --

         11                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Members of the

         12  community and it would go through the CAPA process,

         13  public hearings, opportunity to comment, change,

         14  drafts, very similar to what I've described earlier,

         15  correct whatever input. And then ultimately

         16  promulgate it as rules, yes, ma'am.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And can you give

         18  me just a few examples of things that would be given

         19  staff permits under those rules?

         20                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: All kinds of

         21  modifications, new windows, new air conditioning

         22  units, facade work and even side and rear yard

         23  additions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. Thank you

         25  very much for testifying today.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Can I ask

          4  since you raised it and it was appropriate to just

          5  ask him to say when --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Very, very brief.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: -- Are we

          8  going to get those rules. Because a lot of people

          9  have asked me that question. When are we going to

         10  get those rules?

         11                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: We hope within the

         12  next few months. It is consistent with the CAPA

         13  proceeding.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         15  Comrie.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Will the FPOA

         17  be involved in that promulgation or setting up the

         18  rules?

         19                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes, they will have

         20  an opportunity. We welcome their input and

         21  everyone's input in those rules.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Will they be

         23  on part of the continued committee if there is a

         24  redesignation, will it go through them first and

         25  then to Landmarks or does it go to Landmarks first?
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          2                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Go to us first.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right,

          4  thank you.

          5                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

          7  much. We're joined today by three previous Landmarks

          8  Preservation Commissioners, if they are still here,

          9  I wanted to call them up to testify next as a panel;

         10  Jennifer Raab, Sherida Paulsen and Laura Beckelman.

         11  Please state your names for the record and you can

         12  begin.

         13                 MS. BECKELMAN: Madam Chair and

         14  members of the Committee, it is my privilege to be

         15  before you today. My name is Laura Beckelman. I was

         16  a former Chairman of the Landmarks Commission from

         17  1990 through 1994. I was appointed first by Mayor

         18  Dickens and served for almost a year under Mayor

         19  Giuliani. I want to apologize for former Chairman

         20  Commissioner Raab; she had a critical appointment,

         21  so she could not stay. I have two minutes and I

         22  would like to take one of those moments to speak for

         23  her. May I begin?

         24                 I also wanted to state that I make it

         25  a rule of never appearing before a Commission for
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          2  the Council unless I feel critical about this. This

          3  is the first time since 1994 that I have been before

          4  a council hearing. I feel strongly about this

          5  because I do believe that this is a very important

          6  historic district. And as the late Brendan Gill

          7  (phonetic), the former Chairman of the Landmarks

          8  Commission, Landmarks Conservancy and the Municipal

          9  Arts Society, another Preservation Groups that the

         10  diversity of our Landmarks is stunning. I think that

         11  is what you see here and I think that as Council

         12  Member Comrie talked about how significant it is.

         13                 As a reminder that these Landmarks I

         14  think as Councilman Barron mentioned, they really do

         15  become a source of neighborhood stability, self-

         16  worth and pride. I think people have moved here over

         17  the years and as you say, Council Member Koppell,

         18  you have lived there for a long time and you take

         19  great pride and your house being shown, I think also

         20  is significant. I think that the Commission has for

         21  almost 50 years been quite flexible and continuing

         22  to get more flexible and having more and more of the

         23  work being done on the staff level.

         24                 If I can reference one, especially

         25  Commissioner Raab, who has for over 13 years lived

                                                            67

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  in Fieldston. She said so many times when she was

          3  the Chairman what she would find is that different

          4  community groups would come in the 11th hour begging

          5  to be designated and begging too late because

          6  demolition permits were already in place. Here you

          7  have an incredible opportunity with Fieldston which

          8  it is pretty much in tact. There is a diversity of

          9  architecture and design and the community has taken

         10  incredible pride. I think where you want to create

         11  the balance is that the community feels that they're

         12  getting the ear of the Commission and the staff and

         13  that what work needs to be done will be done in an

         14  expeditious way.

         15                 I do urge you as the Council to

         16  uphold the designation. I really do think this is

         17  one of the great and most beautiful significant 19th

         18  century urban, 20th century really urban suburban

         19  areas that we have not only in the City, but in the

         20  country. And probably there are less than five of

         21  these type of neighborhoods that have been

         22  designated in the entire City.

         23                 MS. PAULSEN: Good afternoon. My name

         24  is Sherida Paulsen also former Chairman of the

         25  Landmarks Commission and a member of the Commission
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          2  from 1995 through 2003. I'm here today to support

          3  the designation of the historic district. I'm both

          4  an architect and a planner and I think the important

          5  thing that we see in Fieldston is that it compares

          6  favorably and beautifully with other planned

          7  suburban communities across the United States,

          8  notably the ones designed by Frederick Olmsted such

          9  as Riverside in Illinois, Palace Verdes (phonetic)

         10  in California, and some of the other notable

         11  districts in New York City that have been designated

         12  such as Douglaston, Forest Hills Garden, which is

         13  not designated for different reasons. And the other

         14  important communities in Brooklyn that have been

         15  designated as well.

         16                 The critical issue in designating

         17  this is that the combination of landscape and

         18  streetscape with notable buildings is unique. It is

         19  very different from a lot of our other historic

         20  districts. The buildings are of very high quality.

         21  The quality of the environment is superb and it

         22  represents New York City in way that the other

         23  historic districts don't. And to have this jewel and

         24  this type of architecture and planning designated is

         25  I think critical for the City and very important and
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          2  I thank all of you for visiting the neighborhood and

          3  taking the time to come out. Thanks.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you both.

          5  You mentioned, Commissioner Paulsen that Fieldston

          6  represents New York City in ways that some of the

          7  other districts do not. Could you just elaborate on

          8  that? What is and Commissioner Tierney said as well,

          9  this is a unique district. What makes it in your

         10  view unique?

         11                 MS. PAULSEN: Two things. I think when

         12  a lot of people look at New York City, they think of

         13  skyscrapers and the Commissioner's grid of 1812ish

         14  and I think when you look at Riverdale and

         15  Fieldston, especially, you seen winding curvilinear

         16  streets. You see a plethora of trees and you see a

         17  variety of building styles that you don't normally

         18  associate with New York City's art deco or federal

         19  or neogeorgian type buildings. It's very distinctive

         20  and it is quite different from anything else.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         22  Council Member Comrie.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You did it

         24  compare with the Forest Hills Gardens and I'm

         25  curious to hear from both of you while we have you
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          2  here with your vast array of expertise, what is the

          3  difference between Forest Hills Gardens and the

          4  Fieldston area? And Forest Hills Gardens is aching

          5  to be designated also and I'm from Queens, so I'm

          6  kind of partial to that and curious to hear from you

          7  why you don't think it is as viable.

          8                 MS. PAULSEN: I think Forest Hills

          9  Gardens is also a unique and very beautiful suburban

         10  residential planned community. It has very distinct

         11  differences in the way that it regulates the design

         12  of new construction being able to be done within its

         13  area. It's also different even though it has some of

         14  the curvilinear streets, in that it allows for a

         15  variety of building types. It has commercial,

         16  residential, it has multi- family, attached houses.

         17  It has a wider variety of building types. It's

         18  distinct and it is not the same as Fieldston. But it

         19  is a very beautiful and very worthy area.

         20                 MS. BECHELMAN: I would just like to

         21  mention just also as far as policy and how one

         22  proceeds in developing even priorities in that I

         23  know that when I was the Chairman and as I think

         24  Commissioner Tierney and Commissioner Raab would

         25  also say as well, as Commissioner Paulsen, is that
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          2  you have a limited amount of time and a limited

          3  staff and where do you make the priorities? I know

          4  when I was at the Commission, I was in charge of the

          5  Commission when we designated Riverdale as a

          6  district. At the same time, I didn't look at Forest

          7  Hills as priority; what I did was I looked at

          8  Jackson Heights. I was very interested in Forest

          9  Hills, extremely interested in Forest Hills. I'm

         10  still interested in Forest Hills and hope that does

         11  get designated.

         12                 I knew that I had an opportunity with

         13  the people that are in the community and people on

         14  the staff that were also familiar in moving that

         15  quickly through and spent a lot of time in the

         16  community. I do hope that will come to pass that

         17  Forest Hills which is a community that I think

         18  people have celebrated for years and it is worthy of

         19  consideration for designation.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         23  Mendez, no? Okay. Thank you both very much for

         24  taking the time to testify.

         25                 MS. PAULSEN: Thank you and as a
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          2  Riverdale resident, I thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We're going to do

          4  a panel now with Arthur Goldstein representing the

          5  Fieldston Homeowners Association; Leon Metzger,

          6  representing himself and Emanuel Kessner of 4572

          7  Delafield Avenue; and Elizabeth Scheuer, Fieldston

          8  Road. This is a panel. It should be made up of

          9  people who are scheduled to testify in opposition.

         10  Are there only three of you? We can bring another

         11  person up then. Oh, she's coming. Okay. You can

         12  begin. Please state your name for the record.

         13                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Arthur Goldstein,

         14  representing the Fieldston Homeowners Association.

         15  Do you want all of us to identify first?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: You can identify

         17  yourself as you testify in order and can the

         18  Sergeant please start the clock as well. Thank you.

         19                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: The Fieldston

         20  Homeowners Association has the same objective as of

         21  the Chairman of the Landmarks Commission. They to

         22  want to preserve Fieldston. They are just choosing a

         23  different path and asking for support in that path.

         24  I have here a stack of petitions from 133 people or

         25  covering 133 lots. There are three other names that
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          2  someone may mention later that we actually got from

          3  the press that do not favor the designation. I think

          4  those names were gotten from a reporter who spoke to

          5  your office, Council Member Koppell. That's about a

          6  little more than half of the 257 homes that are

          7  listed in the report.

          8                 These people love their community.

          9  They want to preserve their community. I'm not going

         10  to read my testimony. I'll submit it to the

         11  Committee this afternoon because I made some changes

         12  based on the comments. But it is important to note

         13  that the Chairman on January 10, in describing the

         14  residents in this community, he said they were

         15  amazing stewards of the community. Up until this

         16  point and I think the last speaker sort of made the

         17  same point that there hasn't been a problem, there

         18  hasn't been mass demolitions in Fieldston. They have

         19  been amazing stewards. The question should be what

         20  is the best way to preserve Fieldston going forward.

         21                 Well, you don't need restrictions and

         22  deeds, although it would be helpful and make it a

         23  lot simpler situation. The Property Owners

         24  Association, by way of rule, like they have done

         25  with so many other rules that we could representing
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          2  136 people -- two minutes goes quite quickly. The

          3  path to follow here is to allow for self-

          4  governance. I handled out a little flyer that

          5  discusses how that would take place. The Property

          6  Owners Association, which by the way didn't take a

          7  position on Landmarks.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Arthur, I want to

          9  be fair to everybody and give everybody the

         10  opportunity to speak, then I have to keep people to

         11  two minutes as much as possible.

         12                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Do you need a few

         13  people to waive time for me? I'm representing 136

         14  people here.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: If you could just

         16  wrap up, that would be great.

         17                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Okay. We think there

         18  is a valid path that ought to be explored certainly

         19  over the next few weeks as I believe the Council has

         20  until May 18 to make a final determination here. The

         21  Property Owners Association can in fact by rule

         22  establish an Architectural Review Committee. They

         23  are willing, the people I represent, are willing to

         24  work with Landmarks in terms of formulating rules,

         25  taking the rules at Forest Hills Gardens has and
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          2  several others that were mentioned to me Riverdale

          3  has a set of rules, sitting in a conference room and

          4  settling on rules that might be, quite frankly, very

          5  similar to what Landmarks may end up producing. But

          6  giving this private single family community a chance

          7  to live up to the history as a private community.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We can discuss

          9  this more. Because I have some questions for you.

         10  But I'd like to give the other people on the panel

         11  an opportunity to speak and then we can move to

         12  questions. Whichever order you prefer.

         13                 MR. METZGER: Madam Chair Lady,

         14  Honorable Members, I'm Leon Metzger, resident of

         15  Fieldston. By way of background, in 1997, my wife

         16  bought our home. That home was renovated and

         17  expanded in 1989 by its former owner. We do not

         18  intend to alter our home either internally or

         19  externally. We did not oppose landmarking in an

         20  earlier poll because we did not understand its

         21  impact. We think that there are some really, really

         22  ugly houses both recently renovated ones as well as

         23  older ones in Fieldston. But that's our personal

         24  aesthetic taste.

         25                 Our opinion on landmarking, we
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          2  believe that there is no broad mandate from current

          3  owners to support landmarking. We do not live in a

          4  command economy where the minority dictates to the

          5  majority. Hence, we believe that City Council should

          6  not approve landmarking Fieldston. Thank you.

          7                 MS. SCHEUER: My name is Elizabeth

          8  Scheuer and I have lived on Fieldston Road for

          9  almost 15 years. When we made certain fairly minor

         10  changes to the grounds around our house, Harry

         11  Pilzner (phonetic) defended our right. He was known

         12  as the Mayor of Fieldston. He defended our right to

         13  do that and said that people on the whole should

         14  mind their own business. I joked that at least we

         15  weren't putting Pink Flamingoes on the front lawn.

         16                 When we requested a curb cut to put a

         17  driveway in the front of our house, we only had to

         18  show (ten years ago) that we weren't going to damage

         19  any tree or root systems. It wasn't a question of

         20  whether people thought that the driveway was pretty.

         21  With regard to property values, my husband and I

         22  have been looking for a somewhat smaller home in

         23  Fieldston as our older children leave for college

         24  and we recently looked at a home, a Dwight James

         25  Baum home, which needs a complete renovation. It is
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          2  very chilling to think that we might want to for

          3  instance put air conditioning into this home and be

          4  told where we may or may not put vents, generators,

          5  et cetera.

          6                 The sad reality is that the specter

          7  of having to deal with other people's aesthetic

          8  values is a significant restraint for us to buy a

          9  different home in Fieldston and I would be willing

         10  to wager for other people as well. With regard to

         11  Fieldston, the streets can't be changed. The

         12  beautiful curvilinear streets are there. The trees

         13  and the root systems are already protected. They are

         14  building restrictions already in place, set backs in

         15  effect. The landscape and streetscape as someone was

         16  talking about is protected and cannot be changed.

         17  What remains at stake is the aesthetic values and

         18  the desire to impose these on other people.

         19                 Councilman Comrie asked why we are

         20  against landmarking. We are against it because with

         21  so many regulations already in place to protect

         22  Fieldston, we don't think that residents should be

         23  subjected to constraining time tables whims,

         24  politics and costs of going through what can be a

         25  very lengthy and extensive landmarking review
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          2  process.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. Sir?

          4                 MR. KESSLER: My name is Emanuel

          5  Kessler. I live at 4512 Delafield Avenue. During the

          6  summer, my neighbor and I have gardens that we call

          7  Wave Hill East. Nobody is denying the beauty and the

          8  uniqueness of Fieldston. It is what it is and it is

          9  a gem. And it started in 1920 and in 1930 there were

         10  no longer restrictions imposed by the original

         11  owners. So you have got 75 years of Fieldston being

         12  taken care of by the people who own the property and

         13  lived there since 1930; that's 76 years. And now

         14  someone realized that it was beautiful. And what do

         15  they do? They want to take it away from us because

         16  with all the people who have spoken here today,

         17  nobody has said anything about those in the 75 years

         18  who have taken care of this gem.

         19                 We didn't need Landmarks. We didn't

         20  need anything. I got a letter the other day from the

         21  Honorable Mr. Koppell. Mr. Koppell is a resident of

         22  Fieldston and he's also a member of your Commission.

         23  Now in this letter, he writes current deed

         24  provisions do not permit the FPOA or anyone else to

         25  approve architectural changes. I assume he means
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          2  that in 1930 those architectural obligations went

          3  off. Then he goes on to say, it is highly unlikely

          4   -- no, it is highly unlikely that Fieldston

          5  homeowners will have the power to control what their

          6  neighbors can do.

          7                 Now I want to suggest to the

          8  Honorable Mr. Koppell that back in 1920 when the

          9  original obligations and restrictions were imposed

         10  on the property by Delafield and the others, I quote

         11  you --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Sir, I'm going to

         13  have to ask you to -- you continue reading the end

         14  of the letter, but then I would like you summarize,

         15  please.

         16                 MR. KESSLER: I'll just read you two

         17  lines, that's all. It says that he, meaning any

         18  owner of the property after the original documents

         19  were signed, will not at anytime carry on, permit

         20  cause, intoxicating liqueur, wine, beer and so forth

         21  nor the doing of anything on matter thereon or any

         22  use thereof that may be or become a nuisance or

         23  which shall be offensive to residents in the

         24  district or in the neighborhood. That requirement is

         25  in perpetuity that didn't die in 1930. Now Mr.
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          2  Tierney --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Sir, I'm going to

          4  try to be as fair as I possibly can be, but that

          5  means that everybody has to do their best to keep to

          6  the time limits because there are a lot of people

          7  here who want to testify today. But if Council

          8  Member Koppell, did you want to respond?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'll ask him

         10  a question when they are all done.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: He was last

         12  speaker on the panel.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Manny, I

         14  respect you as a lawyer, but do you believe that

         15  building a modern house that would be inconsistent

         16  with the styles is a nuisance? Do you think that

         17  would be considered a nuisance?

         18                 MR. KESSLER: You know when they built

         19  the building next to mine back in 1988, that was

         20  what they used. I'm not using the word nuisance. I'm

         21  using the word and when Mr. Tierney was up here, his

         22  word subjective just as offensive is subjective, his

         23  word was appropriate. I'm suggesting to you that the

         24  people behind me are intelligent enough and love

         25  this multi- million dollar community of ours enough
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          2  to know what is offensive. And we don't need anybody

          3  to tell us what is appropriate. We live there.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I don't want

          5   --

          6                 MR. KESSLER: As far as your concern,

          7  Mr. Koppell, you should be out there, not there. I

          8  understand that you have an obligation, but I also

          9  understand that this is not a letter that I received

         10  on the Council of the City of New York's material

         11  that comes to me and tells me that as your Council

         12  Member who supports landmarking, I do not want

         13  anyone to believe that landmarking will result in

         14  the problems falsely claimed by the letter. Some

         15  letter that someone else wrote to you.

         16                 That's not the way that a Councilman

         17  should act. You should be out there with the people

         18  whom you presumably represent because you are one of

         19  them. You not a member of the board. And you should

         20  not have the right to vote against us.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Kessler,

         22  without getting into a lengthy debate, I was subject

         23  to election in a primary and general election in the

         24  year 2005. My position on landmarking was clear and

         25  unequivocal before that election. Seventy- six
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          2  percent of those who voted in the primary voted for

          3  me. Eighty percent of those who voted in the general

          4  election voted for me. With all due respect, Mr.

          5  Kessler, I because of the vote of the overwhelming

          6  number of my constituents belong on this side of the

          7  table. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I have a question

          9  for Mr. Goldstein and I want to say, we are going to

         10  keep order in this room. People are here

         11  representing both sides of the issue need to be

         12  respectful of one another. And respectful of the

         13  people who are members of this body. I have a

         14  question about self- governance. The idea that the

         15  Property Owners Association could re- establish an

         16  Architectural Review Committee, what would the

         17  enforcement mechanism of this review committee be?

         18  Considering it wouldn't be any longer, the

         19  restrictions on the deed--

         20                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I understand. It's

         21  very simple. The Property Owners Associations has

         22  the ability to sue and they have sued before. I

         23  understand they recently spent in excess of $500,000

         24  on legal fees when they wanted to deal with an

         25  issue. So they have the ability -- if the Councilman
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          2  didn't pay his $7 or $8,000 in dues, they could sue.

          3  Just in addendum to have a clearer answer on the

          4  last question, there is more language in there that

          5  talks about what the Property Owners Association is.

          6  They are meant to preserve Fieldston. So there is a

          7  basis for it. All they have to do --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I'm not denying

          9  that there is a basis for it because it used to

         10  exist. It used to be part of the deed. So there is

         11  obviously a basis for it. Once those provisions

         12  expired, it would be reinstituting it would be

         13  something done voluntarily by the organization. What

         14  would prohibit the Architectural Review Committee

         15  from going out of existence in three months or three

         16  years?

         17                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I think Mr. Kessler

         18  answered that for you. I think the heart of his

         19  answer is there has got to be trust for this

         20  community with the rules in place. There has got to

         21  be a recognition of the history here. Don't take my

         22  word for it, let's take Bob Tierney's word for it. I

         23  have a great deal of respect for Bob Tierney. I

         24  think he started early in the Koch Administration,

         25  but I have known him for about 25 years. He's a
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          2  terrific public servant and I'm going to take him at

          3  his word. When he stated at a January meeting that's

          4  going to go on forever in the history of Fieldston

          5  that they are amazing stewards, that means they have

          6  done okay up until now. Mr. Kessler said that as

          7  well.

          8                 If they have an opportunity to

          9  establish an Architectural Review Committee, which

         10  by the way instead of them slupping to Manhattan and

         11  hiring -- when I do landmarks, I charged about $400

         12  an hour. Last time I was down there, I was down

         13  there from 2:00, in combination with my partner, to

         14  5:30. That was just one hearing and my client was

         15  with me. It could get a little bit expensive. Given

         16  the choice of having an Architectural Review

         17  Committee that might actually meet in Fieldston 7:30

         18  at night when some of the homeowners may be home

         19  from work and maybe have a little easier time with

         20  childcare issues and going to a neighborhood

         21  committee.

         22                 These individual homeowners who own

         23  very expensive homes, as I'm told, let's see how it

         24  works. Use your number, three months later or nine

         25  months later. One of the things on the sheet that I
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          2  handed out was that part of the agreement in

          3  establishing this new Architectural Review Committee

          4  would be to in fact write a report not only to this

          5  Land Use division, but to Landmarks. So they could

          6  in a way watch what's happening because if they are

          7  not good stewards, all of a sudden, they turn into

          8  bad stewards, you know what, then I was wrong, we

          9  were wrong for trusting them. And then Landmarks is

         10  going to rush right back in. But this is a private

         11  community. Part of landmarking is that it's not only

         12  to preserve history for the sake of preserving it,

         13  it's that for people to see it. There are tourists

         14  situation where people actually go places because

         15  they want to see historic places. Well, Fieldston

         16  with its history is private. You cannot drive into

         17  Fieldston and park on any given street. You could be

         18  towed.

         19                 People who actually, I'm told and

         20  someone could correct me if I'm wrong, but even if

         21  you started walking through Fieldston, you might

         22  even be stopped by a security guard. Some people

         23  told me this. My point is, my point is, that it is a

         24  private community. I don't think anyone will

         25  disagree with the parking.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Please, quite in

          3  the room.

          4                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: With the parking

          5  aspect. You can't drive a tour bus in there and have

          6  everybody get out.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: With all due

          8  respect, I think Commissioner Tierney discussed some

          9  of the issues of a private community. I did want to

         10  ask you a question, Ms. Scheuer. I hope I'm

         11  pronouncing your name correctly. You mentioned a

         12  concern over dealing with the Landmarks Preservation

         13  Commission and that would involve politics. My

         14  question is, having neighbors telling neighbors what

         15  to do would seem to me to be by nature potentially

         16  more political. I just wanted to give you an

         17  opportunity.

         18                 MS. SCHEUER: I don't disagree with

         19  that. Having neighbors telling neighbors what to do

         20  can be very perilous. But what I object to is the

         21  whole issue of imposing taste and the uncertainty of

         22  the whole process. I know Chairman Tierney said we

         23  would be flexible, we would be this, we might do

         24  this, we could do this, appropriate, consistent.

         25  These are all subjective words. When my mother used
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          2  to tell me something wasn't appropriate, it was

          3  because it wasn't what she wanted me to do. And when

          4  I tell my children the same thing, that's really

          5  what it means. Can be, might be, appropriate,

          6  consistent, all very, very subjective words. It is a

          7  question of taste. It is a question of whether

          8  someone might like the new house that I might want

          9  to build on an empty lot. One's person monstrosity

         10  is another person's Frank Lloyd Wright of the

         11  future.

         12                 I think having really anyone tell us

         13  that as long as we're protecting the trees,

         14  protecting the streets, protecting the setbacks,

         15  protecting the space limitations, that what style

         16  we're allowed to build in, we can't do two family,

         17  three family commercial. All that is protected

         18  against. So it's just down to taste and it's very

         19  chilling. It is a big brother situation. It makes me

         20  sad. But I think it just as bad with neighbors as

         21  with strangers. On that one, it's a question of free

         22  choice.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Do any of my

         24  colleagues? Council Member Comrie.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I was --
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          2                 MR. KESSLER: While he's thinking, if

          3  I may --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Actually, sir --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Actually I had

          6  my question ready, Mr. Kessler. My statement was

          7  that I was going to do okay until you just mentioned

          8  it that the Committee could be as political as

          9  Landmarks. How do you expect to have a legal

         10  Architectural Review Committee that would protect

         11  the association? Where is your precedent for that?

         12                 MR. KESSLER: May I answer that?

         13                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Okay. You can give it

         14  a shot.

         15                 MR. KESSLER: The certificate of

         16  incorporation of Fieldston property owners and I

         17  stress Property Owners Association gives the objects

         18  of the incorporation to preserve and develop the

         19  settlement known as Fieldston, at Riverdale on the

         20  Hudson, as a highly restricted, well kept and

         21  properly maintained suburban residential section. To

         22  take all reasonable and lawful means for the

         23  improvement and betterment of Fieldston, maintaining

         24  and enforcing restrictions upon the property

         25  contained in Fieldston for the benefit of the
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          2  property owners.

          3                 Now that gives absolute authority to

          4  Fieldston Property Owners Association to set down

          5  and even go back to the original document and state

          6  what their architectural requirements are. If

          7  Landmarks wants to come in and help us, fine. But

          8  Landmark is not the one to set the rules. FPOA is

          9  the one to set the rules with the accommodation of

         10  the Landmarks Commission.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Are you saying

         12  that's beyond what the 40 years that the covenant

         13  has been --

         14                 MR. KESSLER: Seventy- five years.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: It's my

         16  understanding is that as of law the covenant is

         17  expired for about 50 years.

         18                 MR. KESSLER: They expired, but they

         19  didn't prohibit the reinstitution of those same

         20  articles. They are still available.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That's my

         22  question. How do we get to a legal reinstitution of

         23  those?

         24                 MR. KESSLER: That's for the people

         25  out there to decide. We should not be here today. We
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          2  should be at the Riverdale Country School discussing

          3  what we are going to do about this and not bring in

          4  Landmarks.

          5                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: All right. Let me

          6  answer the question. If you are asking me what the

          7  procedure would be, the FPOA would have to sit down

          8  and put a resolution before their board establishing

          9  Architectural Review Committee. I won't go into

         10  details, but you would have homeowners, you would

         11  have professionals on that committee. You would take

         12  as I mentioned before, examples of how it is done

         13  elsewhere as far as those in particular. You would

         14  have the Board pass the resolution. If it has to go

         15  before all the members of the Association, so be it.

         16  If it passes that process, then it is in place.

         17                 Then the only thing you would have do

         18  at that point is get down to the specific rules as I

         19  mentioned and put on this document I passed around

         20  and there Mr. Kessler just said it himself and I

         21  said it before, we would welcome the expertise of

         22  the Landmarks staff who have written these types of

         23  rules before. But you're letting the community have

         24  their choice. You are trusting this committee who

         25  have not done anything to not deserve your trust.
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          2  And that's a key issue here. They have been amazing

          3  stewards. Let them try it this way. Let them work

          4  with Landmarks in a cooperative fashion and then

          5  let's see how they do.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Then why

          7  hadn't this been brought up like a year ago when the

          8  Commission had its hearing.

          9                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Let me try my shot at

         10  that one. People often times feel powerless

         11  sometimes. They don't see the answers in front of

         12  them. Fortunately for me, I have basically been a

         13  problem solver all my years in and outside of

         14  government. And as soon as I was presented with this

         15  problem, I saw it and I suggested it. I've meet with

         16  Oliver and Oliver said --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Council Member

         18  Koppell.

         19                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Council Member

         20  Koppell. I know him a long time, sorry. Council

         21  Member Koppell and I met and he said to me, you know

         22  if you brought me this idea two years, I'm not sure

         23  what your answer would have been. And he was

         24  basically saying it is too late. I'm saying it is

         25  not too late. It is not too late besides that there
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          2  were problems with the report which I'm not going to

          3  get into today and maybe some other people will. It

          4  may help in terms of the end game, but it's not too

          5  late because the charter basically says it is not

          6  too late. There is a reason the charter says we are

          7  here today. It is kind of simple.

          8                 Because Landmarks are experts and

          9  once they speak, maybe that should be it. But the

         10  charter allows us to be here. And it means to me

         11  that you as a number of elected officials as a

         12  Council, as a body, have the ability to look at

         13  other factors as well as the quality of the report.

         14  This may be a very unique situation for the Council

         15  to use these powers, but this is a situation where

         16  you could say, you know what, maybe this is not the

         17  time for government to be in this private community.

         18  Maybe there is an alternative here that can possibly

         19  work. Let's trust this committee with their $2

         20  million plus homes. Let's give this a chance because

         21  if I'm wrong, we could be back here with Landmarks a

         22  year from now. If I'm right, then we don't have to

         23  have the government in all of these individual

         24  peoples backyard so to speak.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Again, I'm
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          2  unclear. You set up this Architectural Review

          3  Committee. You re- establish the original rights of

          4  the FPOA. You still don't have any technical legal

          5  ground to prevent someone from doing whatever they

          6  want.

          7                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yes, it would a rule

          8  just like they are not allowed to put signs on their

          9  lawn. They are not allowed to have open --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Quiet please,

         11  quiet please.

         12                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: There are differences

         13  between free speech and other types of signs.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Quiet please.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I'm being

         16  serious. If people don't maintain order in this

         17  room, then they are going to have to be removed.

         18                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: There are various

         19  rules that the property owners have in place

         20  including the most basic the ability to collect

         21  dues. They can enforce those rules.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: These home

         23  owners feel that it would be more effective for you

         24  to do it under the FPOA as opposed to having the

         25  ability of the City to protect the historical
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          2  integrity of the area. That's basically what you are

          3  saying?

          4                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm pretty

          6  much done for now. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: With all due

          8  respect, when I went up and toured Fieldston, there

          9  were a lot of lawn signs there and I'm guessing

         10  there hasn't been lawsuits filed against all of the

         11  homeowners who have lawn signs up. But Council

         12  Member Koppell.

         13                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I think there is a

         14  difference between free speech and other types of

         15  signs, commercial signs.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Let me say

         17  that because Mr. Goldstein did mention that we had a

         18  conversation and I said that if when this process

         19  started, the FPOA had established an Architectural

         20  Review Committee and that was in place and it was

         21  clear that they wanted it, that I would think it

         22  about. I have thought about it and quite frankly and

         23  I appreciate Ms. Scheuer mentioning that she was

         24  concerned about neighbors making these decisions as

         25  well as the Landmark Commission. I think personally
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          2  speaking both as a resident of Fieldston and as a

          3  Council representative that I would prefer, quite

          4  frankly, to have these kind of issues decided by a

          5  professional Landmark Commission rather than a group

          6  of neighbors where prejudice could well enter into

          7  it.

          8                 There are certain people in Fieldston

          9  who have been in big fights with the FPOA, at least

         10  the Board has currently constituted. And I doubt

         11  that they would like the FPOA to control what they

         12  did given the antagonism between them, although I

         13  don't want to speak for them. But the fact is that

         14  we don't have any consensus, your petitions don't

         15  say don't do landmarking; do a Architectural Review

         16  Committee by the FPOA. We don't have any consensus

         17  on that. There is absolutely no evidence to me that

         18  a majority of people in Fieldston would prefer to

         19  have their fate as property owners controlled by an

         20  Architectural Review Committee of the FPOA.

         21                 MR. KESSLER: Why doesn't the FPOA

         22  call a meeting and take a vote on that?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Madam, Chair,

         24  I don't want to engage in a debate. I simply want to

         25  say that while you pose that as an alternative, I
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          2  don't believe it is enforceable. We can debate that

          3  as lawyers. I don't believe that the clauses that

          4  Mr. Kessler or you mentioned allow for the

          5  enforcement. We don't have a consensus on that.

          6                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: What if it is?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: We don't have

          8  a consensus on that, Mr. Goldstein. What we have

          9  here is a practical and appropriate way to preserve

         10  the character of the neighborhood and in my view, in

         11  my view, it is preferable to a group of neighbors

         12  who could well act very arbitrarily and if you want

         13  to introduce politics, there is no more political

         14  group than the narrow local group. Just to point out

         15  that in this City right now, people are moving to

         16  buy condos and even converting co- ops to condos

         17  because they resent the fact that co- op boards are

         18  so arbitrary and this would be just the same kind of

         19  thing, like a co- op board.

         20                 Two hundred- fifty apartments in a

         21  building, we have got plenty of them in New York.

         22  And people are very concerned now to the extent that

         23  they are converting co- ops to condos or buying

         24  condos because they don't like the arbitrary nature

         25  of co- op boards. And to introduce a co- op board

                                                            97

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  like structure in Fieldston, I would suggest has

          3  many perils and you come here and you say, oh this

          4  is wonderful because you are trying to defeat

          5  landmarking, I doubt very seriously whether most of

          6  my neighbors in Fieldston would think it was so

          7  wonderful to have the FPOA board control what kind

          8  of windows they put in their house.

          9                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Let me just be clear.

         10  That's not necessarily my personal opinion. You once

         11  told me, be careful what you wish for. I'm not going

         12  to put forth my personal feelings. This is what I'm

         13  getting from my clients. I'd like to leave it to

         14  them since it is their community to make that

         15  choice.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. Yes,

         17  we need to move onto to the next panel. Thank you

         18  very much. I want to mention that we have been

         19  joined by Council Member Annabel Palma who is a

         20  member of this Committee and Council Member Jimmy

         21  Oddo who was here earlier who is also a member of

         22  this Committee. The next panel is Tony Perez

         23  Cassino, Chair of Community Board 8; Donald Cohn

         24  from the Riverdale Nature Preservation Moshoh- An of

         25  the Bronx; E.A. Dennison and Melanie Meyers from the
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          2  Horace Mann School. E.A. Dennison is representing

          3  the Riverdale Nature Conservancy. These four are

          4  testifying in favor. If you maybe begin --

          5                 MR. CASSINO: Want me to start?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: -- And move this

          7  way.

          8                 MR. CASSINO: Is this on?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Yes. I mentioned

         10  if you could state your name and identify yourself

         11  for the record.

         12                 MR. CASSINO: Madam Chair, I'm Tony

         13  Perez Cassino. I chair Community Board 8, which

         14  covers this area and the Kings Bridge area and

         15  Riverdale as well. I'm going to leave it to others

         16  to touch up on all that you have heard about the

         17  natural beauty of the area, the uniqueness. Many

         18  others are more qualified than I even to discuss

         19  that. But I want to touch on three quick points. One

         20  is that Fieldston (I don't live in Fieldston,

         21  although I would like to one day as yourself), but

         22  Fieldston is part of a larger community. I don't

         23  think we should forget here that Fieldston is part

         24  of Riverdale and part of the northwest Bronx and

         25  part of the Bronx. I don't think that we should lose
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          2  that in this discussion. The Bronx has been

          3  overlooked many times before in terms of landmarking

          4  and in terms of its natural beauty. I think we have

          5  to look at this in context.

          6                 Fieldston is part of a broader

          7  community. If the area around Fieldston were not as

          8  lovely as it is, Fieldston would not be as special

          9  as it is and vice a versa. We are interindependent

         10  here as a borough, and as a community. I want to

         11  remind everybody of that. Point number two is that

         12  there is broad and deep support for this. Community

         13  Board has held numerous hearings on this. We've had

         14  over 200 people come to our meetings and we have

         15  heard much of the testimony that you will hear

         16  today. There have been many discussions about this.

         17  It is has been written about in the newspaper often.

         18                 The Community Board voted 22 to 4 in

         19  favor including we have four or five members who

         20  live in Fieldston. Every one of those members voted

         21  in favor. There is broad support. You will hear from

         22  other community organizations here are elected

         23  officials. Four of our elected officials locally are

         24  in strong support. Oliver has been, Oliver Koppell,

         25  Council Member, as been in strong support of the
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          2  landmarking. There is broad and deep support

          3  throughout the community.

          4                 The final thing that I want to

          5  mention is that this is part of a bigger picture of

          6  preserving the community. We have rezoned the area.

          7  We have strengthened the special natural area

          8  district regulations. This is part of a long- term

          9  effort by the Community Board and by the community

         10  as a whole to preserve our community. Thank you.

         11                 MR. COHN: My name is Donald Cohn. I'm

         12  Chairman of the Riverdale Natural Preservancy. We

         13  have about 500 members who are dedicated to

         14  maintaining and preserving the environment in the

         15  northwest Bronx. And we wholeheartedly support

         16  landmarking of Fieldston. Let me take off that hat

         17  and put on another hat. I have lived in Fieldston

         18  for 46 years. My wife and I bought our house in 1960

         19  and we have raised four children there.

         20                 I am also a past- President of the

         21  Fieldston Property Owners Association and Mr.

         22  Comrie, let me assure you that the Property Owners

         23  Association is contained in every deed and everybody

         24  who buys a house in Fieldston, by deed, must be a

         25  member of the Fieldston Property Owners Association
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          2  and pay dues to it. And the Fieldston Property

          3  Owners Association is jurisdiction and controlled of

          4  the streets, the trees that abut the streets and the

          5  sewers and nothing else. They have no control over

          6  what property owners may do with their property.

          7  That is a given, let me assure you.

          8                 We now face a situation where we have

          9  an opportunity to maintain and preserve Fieldston.

         10  The Landmark designation is of a district, not any

         11  individual property, but of a district where the

         12  houses fit into this urban forest. And that's what

         13  we have there an urban forest which is unique

         14  anywhere in the United States. It should be

         15  preserved and maintained. My wife and I have

         16  considered it a privilege to live in that community

         17  and we work hard to maintain it and preserve it and

         18  we would like to leave it for the people who come

         19  after us so that they can have the same wonderful

         20  experience that we have had. The opposition to

         21  landmarking before today was we don't faceless

         22  bureaucrats telling us what to do. You think they

         23  want their neighbors to tell them what to do? Give

         24  me a break.

         25                 MS. MEYERS: Good afternoon. My name
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          2  is Melanie Meyers. I'm an attorney with Fried,

          3  Frank, Harris, Schriver, Jacobson (phonetic) here

          4  representing the Horace Mann School and speaking in

          5  favor of the matter before the Committee. Horace

          6  Mann has been located in Riverdale since 1909 and it

          7  has been a member of Fieldston since the inception

          8  of the community. The school is the largest property

          9  owner within the Fieldston Property Owners

         10  Association. It is also the property owner that has

         11  the most properties within the proposed historic

         12  district.

         13                 The school sits at the edge of the

         14  residential community. It is located on the east

         15  side of Tibbett's Avenue with most of the lower

         16  school campus hidden from the residential neighbors

         17  to the west. That is a result of both significant

         18  changes in topography in the area and a line of

         19  formerly residential buildings lining Tibbett

         20  Avenue. Many of those buildings are owned by Horace

         21  Mann. Four of them would be included in the historic

         22  district.

         23                 The school began acquiring these

         24  properties along Tibbett Avenue to address pressing

         25  space needs for the school. Once acquired, the
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          2  buildings were upgraded and their interior is

          3  retrofitted simply in response to the most pressing

          4  need of the school at that point. Today the

          5  buildings are attractive on the outside and the

          6  insides are really rabbit worn with a host of

          7  different uses from music rooms to administrative

          8  offices to kindergarten space. The school's plan had

          9  been to look at these properties in a comprehensive

         10  fashion to address programming needs, but resources

         11  have not allowed this to happen to date.

         12                 The historic district designation

         13  will affect the school's plan to integrate and

         14  better use these buildings for school programming.

         15  And because of that affect, the school had to think

         16  carefully about its views regarding the historic

         17  district designation. After thoroughly examining the

         18  issue, the school believes that its planning and

         19  curricular needs can co- exist with historic

         20  district designation and therefore appears in

         21  support. To do so, it is important to recognize the

         22  location of Horace Mann property, their limited

         23  visibility and the building status is a buffer

         24  between residents to the west and the remainder of

         25  the campus be recognized. Horace Mann will need the
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          2  ability to adapt, enlarge and connect its buildings

          3  to rationalize and improve their use.

          4                 They must be able to respond to life

          5  safety issues and concerns in operating community

          6  facilities out of these buildings. The school

          7  believes that these sort of changes can be

          8  accomplished in a manner that is sensitive to and

          9  respects the historic district designation and our

         10  conversations with the Landmarks have strengthened

         11  this view. Accordingly with these concerns noted, we

         12  believe that the needs of the schools and the goals

         13  of historic preservation can be meet. Thank you.

         14                 MR. COHN: Madam Chair, I would like

         15  to say one thing --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I'm sorry, sir.

         17  There is another gentlemen on the panel.

         18                 MR. COHN: I know. But I live next

         19  door to these buildings and I'm delighted to hear

         20  this.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Sir.

         22                 MR. DENNISON: I'm Allen Dennison.

         23  I've been a resident of Riverdale for 60 years, most

         24  of that time on 246th Street. That's the main

         25  transfer street that goes right through Fieldston.
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          2  I'm the oldest and longest tenured member of

          3  Community Board 8. I'm a retired member of the

          4  American Institute of Architects. And I'm on the

          5  Board of the Riverdale Nature Conservancy. Now you

          6  where I come from. Three points, listen to these

          7  points. One, everybody in Fieldston is there because

          8  they like it. They came to Fieldston because they

          9  like it the way it was then and they are staying on

         10  because they like it the way it is now.

         11                 Two, in order to preserve Fieldston,

         12  the best way to do it is the proposition which we

         13  are considering today, the Landmarks Commission.

         14  There are other suggestions, but they haven't

         15  worked, they haven't been tried out. I would go with

         16  the Landmarks Commission. And the third point is

         17  that even the opponents of landmarking like

         18  Fieldston. They like it. They wouldn't be there if

         19  they didn't like it. But, they are opposed to

         20  landmarking because either distrust or they have

         21  been mislead or maybe misinformed. I see the danger

         22  of radical transformations, alterations, even tear

         23  downs in the McMansions. I don't think we want that.

         24  Please support the designation. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

                                                            106

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  much. Do any of my colleagues have questions?

          3  Council Member Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is Horace Mann

          5  in the designated area?

          6                 MS. MEYERS: Four of its buildings

          7  would be in the designated area. The campus extends

          8  well west and well north of the historic district,

          9  but a portion of the campus would be included.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm just

         11  curious because were you not supporting before?

         12  Because the gentlemen to your left seems to be newly

         13  excited about your position.

         14                 MS. MEYERS: At the time of the

         15  hearing before the Landmarks Preservation

         16  Commission, the school had appeared in opposition.

         17  And I think that there has been some additional

         18  thought, additional attempts to understand the

         19  consequences of landmarking and we have changed our

         20  position and that position was registered at the

         21  City Planning Commission hearing and we are

         22  appearing before you to make sure that that

         23  continues to be understood.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Was the

         25  designating lines redrawn?
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          2                 MS. MEYERS: No, the designating lines

          3  were the same.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So the four

          5  buildings that were in question before were the only

          6  buildings of your complex?

          7                 MS. MEYERS: Correct. Yes, the line

          8  has been unchanged and the four, again, residential

          9  buildings which are currently being used for

         10  community facility uses.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. The

         12  gentleman said that according to your understanding

         13  of the FPOA because it seems like everybody that

         14  comes up here has a different understanding, you are

         15  saying as far as you are concerned, it only covers

         16  the streets, the sewers, the trees and nothing else.

         17                 MR. COHN: That's correct. That the

         18  stewardship that Mr. Tierney was talking about.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Thank

         20  you. That was curious to me why you were so excited,

         21  sir. Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Madam Chair,

         23  I don't have a question. I just want to recognize

         24  the contribution that not taking anything from

         25  Council for Horace Mann, but the three people
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          2  testifying have made a unique contribution to our

          3  committee. Tony Cassino has been most the

          4  distinguished chair of the Community Board and we

          5  appreciate the Community Board support. Donald Cohn

          6  has devoted a huge amount of his time to the local

          7  community as well as other things and Allen Dennison

          8  has devoted a life time to the community and they

          9  should be recognized for what they have done other

         10  there, long devotion to Fieldston and Riverdale.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. Thank

         12  you very much for testifying. The next panel which

         13  is a panel in opposition, William Rodman, Fieldston

         14  Homeowners Association, Inc.; Ellen Rodman, Daniel

         15  Perla, and Charles Moerdler. Could you please speak

         16  into the mic. Thank you.

         17                 MR. MOERDLER: Madam Chair, my name is

         18  Charles Moerdler. I am the Chairman and have for 20

         19  years been the Chairman of the Land Use Committee of

         20  Community Board No. 8. I do not speak on this matter

         21  for the board. Let me give you three credentials and

         22  in order to deal with the time frame, five head

         23  notes which you can ask me questions about or

         24  ignore. I was the Commissioner of the Building's

         25  Department and of Housing of the City of New York
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          2  under John Lindsey (phonetic). Two, I authored the

          3  original landmarks bill for Richard Alridge

          4  (phonetic). Three, I am the representative of the

          5  Municipal Labor Committee, United Federation of

          6  Teachers, the Sanitation Union and most of labor

          7  unions in the disputes known as collective

          8  bargaining. Why do all four of those matters have

          9  relevance?

         10                 One, we enacted originally with the

         11  support of Councilwoman Islin (phonetic) and then

         12  with the support of Oliver Koppell, a special

         13  natural area district to provide protection. Two,

         14  this research report that you have before you is

         15  fatally flawed in a whole host of respects that I

         16  can now summarize for you. Suffice it to say, under

         17  the laws of the City of New York, a certificate of

         18  occupancy was not required prior to 1934 and the

         19  research you got for prior to 1934 is either

         20  incomplete, inaccurate, or fabricated. Three, the

         21  covenants do exist, are enforceable and have been

         22  asserted by the FPOA in the New York Court of

         23  Appeals which has ruled on it and they are being

         24  asserted right now in pending litigation against an

         25  adjoining property owner.
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          2                 Three, every single application in

          3  the Fieldston area has been submitted to the FPOA in

          4  the 20 years that I have been Chair of Land Use

          5  including all natural area and construction

          6  applications in Fieldston and they have consistently

          7  acted on them. I have photographs here to show you

          8  to prove it. And my last point is to answer the

          9  question of Council Member Comrie. Why do I oppose?

         10  Fieldston is a wonderful area. It deserves every bit

         11  of protection it can get. However, this is

         12  exclusionary. It is designed and it will have the

         13  affect of excluding the young people who wish to

         14  move into this neighborhood from adding to homes,

         15  from painting their front door blue instead of white

         16  and it will discriminate. It is for that reason that

         17  I oppose it.

         18                 Now lastly, over a year and a half

         19  ago in Oliver's presence and he has done a mighty

         20  job on behalf of Fieldston and all of his

         21  constituency. We asked for those rules to see where

         22  they were going to meddle. We asked for the rules

         23  you talked about, Madam Chair. In fact, we even

         24  drafted it for them. True, it was an advocates

         25  document. We drafted it for them. Have you seen it
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          2  yet? The most you can get out of the Commission is

          3  we will get to it in a few months. If they were

          4  genuine and if they were really wanted to work with

          5  people, they would have come up with those rules

          6  long before even because Oliver has asked for them

          7  time and again. Madam Chair, I thank you for your

          8  courtesy. I will answer any of these questions that

          9  I have head noted and I thank you.

         10                 MR. PERLA. My name is Daniel Perla.

         11  I'm a Fieldston resident and I'm also a member of

         12  the Fieldston Property Owners Association. I'm going

         13  to speak for myself, not as a representative of the

         14  FPOA. But I do want to clarify one thing. I was

         15  elected to the board as an opposition candidate

         16  largely though not exclusively, but largely by a

         17  group of people who felt that their views were not

         18  being represented on the board, particularly with

         19  respect to landmarking. Council Member Comrie and

         20  Madam Chair, you have raised the issue of FPOA and I

         21  feel that you have been mislead.

         22                 The FPOA is in fact the primary body

         23  that the community turns to for advise, guidance,

         24  and often regulation about Fieldston. Period. In the

         25  two years that I have been on the board, no less
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          2  than a half dozen property owners have come to us to

          3  comment on, or change, or reply to plans for their

          4  properties. Whether we are the final say in that or

          5  the final arbitrary, I really don't know. But the

          6  reality is that the New York City Planning

          7  Commission and the Community Board view us as the

          8  first stop to opine typically before they are

          9  willing to sit down and adjudicate.

         10                 I resent the -- I don't want you to

         11  be mislead. The FPOA right now may not have the

         12  power by deed to do certain things, but it seems to

         13  me they could easily, easily bring that power back

         14  and again, they are looked to as an arbitrative for

         15  all these things. Do not be mislead by that, please.

         16  Secondly, Council Member Comrie you asked a question

         17  about compromise. Where was this group? Why did

         18  these petitions of which there are 136, which is in

         19  fact a majority, albeit a small one. There is a

         20  majority of people opposing this. Two years ago, we

         21  sat down with Commissioner Tierney, myself and a

         22  number of other people with Council Member Koppell,

         23  and we attempted to forge a compromise.

         24                 The people opposing landmarking have

         25  always been willing to come up with some sort of
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          2  compromise. That never really got past square one.

          3  And as a result, many people believe that a

          4  compromise was in the works and was surprised back

          5  in November and December when this was put on the

          6  calendar for LPC consideration. So there has been an

          7  effort and a willingness all along to compromise.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 MS. RODMAN: Good afternoon and my

         10  condolences on the loss of your colleague. I'm not

         11  going to spend my time talking about the pros and

         12  cons of landmarking. I'm sure you've heard it all. I

         13  do want to instead tell what I've learned about my

         14  New York City government. The Landmarks Preservation

         15  Commission (LPC) is an agency about which I have

         16  major concerns. Nothing makes that clearer than a

         17  recent newspaper article about the Lidagoster case,

         18  several copies of which I will leave with you and I

         19  believe you must read.

         20                 At a meeting with Bob Tierney on

         21  January 6, furthermore, he and his staff told us we

         22  were wrong about Douglaston having a majority

         23  requesting landmarking. LPC's director of research

         24  said that, like us, Douglaston was split. Well, the

         25  New York Times, the past president of Douglaston's
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          2  Homeowners Association and their current Councilman

          3  said we are right and LPC is wrong; 85 percent of

          4  the residents in Douglaston requested landmarking.

          5                 In addition, although Bob Tierney

          6  said his staff spent two years preparing the

          7  Fieldston designation report, there are 130

          8  correction letters to date out of 257 descriptions,

          9  including a description of a historic brass porch

         10  light fixture that was purchased at Home Depot just

         11  a few months earlier. And, shockingly, LPC's report

         12  describes a home that doesn't even exist. It is a

         13  description of a home renovation that was filed

         14  several years ago, but was never implemented.

         15                 LPC dismisses all these errors in the

         16  report, two years in the making, as a first draft.

         17  But these are not spelling and typo errors that one

         18  finds in first drafts. These are substantive errors

         19  that raise serious questions about the research

         20  skills, style and conclusions of the LPC staff and

         21  call into serious questions the validity,

         22  credibility and integrity of the report on which no

         23  responsible government official would vote. Remember

         24  the flawed research on weapons of mass destruction

         25  that was used to justify government action?
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          2  Obviously, a different issue, but the same

          3  principle.

          4                 Fortunately, City Council has finally

          5  begun to serve as a check and balances to LPC, an

          6  agency that has had too much unfettered power for

          7  too long. I just want to wind up by saying

          8  Councilman Koppell, whose house is for sale and

          9  whose election numbers were never lower than they

         10  were in this past election according to him in

         11  Fieldston because of his stand on landmarking, seems

         12  not to want to represent the majority of his

         13  constituents now.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I have to ask you

         15  to wrap up.

         16                 MS. RODMAN: Here are 136 petitions

         17  opposed to landmarking and for the compromise of

         18  self- governance. We have been amazing and wonderful

         19  stewards and with good reason, more than 53 percent

         20  of Fieldston residents want to continue being good

         21  stewards, amazing stewards of our neighborhood.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: You neglected

         24  when you began to identify yourself on the record.

         25  If you could do that before your husband testifies.
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          2  State your name.

          3                 MS. RODMAN: Oh, Ellen Rodman. Sorry.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: That's all right.

          5                 MR. RODMAN: Before I start, my name

          6  is William Rodman. Gary Miller who is a member of

          7  the Fieldston Homeowners Association could not

          8  attend today, but he has asked me to submit to the

          9   --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: You can give that

         11  to the Sergeant.

         12                 MR. RODMAN: That's fine, thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         14                 MR. RODMAN: Good afternoon, my name

         15  is William Rodman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Excuse me, Mr.

         17  Rodman. You can reset the clock. That doesn't have

         18  to count against his time.

         19                 MR. RODMAN: I will talk --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: No, no, I'm

         21  giving you more time.

         22                 MR. RODMAN: I appreciate that, thank

         23  you. I live in Fieldston and have lived there for 26

         24  years. I am just one of the 136 Fieldston homeowners

         25  who are opposed to the designation of Fieldston as a
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          2  historic district and to the landmarking of

          3  Fieldston. The designation report lists 257

          4  properties of comprising the proposed historic

          5  district. The clear majority of Fieldston homeowners

          6  by written petition have expressed their opposition

          7  and the opposition continues to grow as more

          8  Fieldston homeowners understand the impact and

          9  unnecessary burden that landmarking will have on

         10  their Fieldston homes.

         11                 This country was founded and has

         12  flourished on the fundamental principals of the

         13  majority of voters must carry the day. It is no

         14  answer for an elected Council Member to question the

         15  vote and then after having learned that there is a

         16  majority who are opposed to landmarking to then say,

         17  that the vote doesn't matter. It matter to him when

         18  he questioned the vote, but it did not matter to him

         19  when he learned that the majority voted against

         20  landmarking. That position is a flagrant disregard

         21  of the fundamental precepts of the fine art society.

         22  Ours is a government of the people, by the people,

         23  and most importantly, for the people.

         24                 Our government office officials and

         25  our Council Members must represent their

                                                            118

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  constituents and they must support the majority.

          3  That is the way our system works. Fieldston has

          4  self- govern for over 70 years and Bob Tierney has

          5  praised the Fieldston community for its amazing

          6  stewardship. And there is no reason to believe that

          7  the stewardship cannot continue and that stewardship

          8  should continue with self- governance and or own

          9  Architectural Review Board or Committee and that's

         10  workable and doable and enforceable.

         11                 Fieldston has had an architectural

         12  review procedure in the past and it can be

         13  reinstituted. We are no different from the

         14  homeowners of Forest Hills Gardens, a private

         15  community, which has its own Architectural Review

         16  Board and which self- governs. Fieldston is not like

         17  Douglaston. Over 80 percent of Douglaston's

         18  homeowners supported landmarking, a far cry from the

         19  number of Fieldston homeowners who support

         20  landmarking. We cannot dismiss this fact so

         21  cavalierly. In 2004, Brooklyn Borough President

         22  talked about landmarking with a connection with a

         23  proposed historic district in Brooklyn.

         24                 He stated, I strongly believe that no

         25  homeowner should have their house landmarked against
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          2  their wishes. There should be complete freedom of

          3  choice on this matter. He went on to state,

          4  attaining landmark status could make it more

          5  difficult for a homeowner to sell his home, make

          6  repairs, or even make renovations. He concluded, the

          7  function of government is not to create hardships

          8  for its citizens, but to provide for relief.

          9                 Members of City Council, you shoulder

         10  a heavy responsibility in what happens to Fieldston.

         11  You cannot deny 70 years of amazing stewardship and

         12  self- governance. You cannot ignore the votes of a

         13  clear majority. You must demonstrate political

         14  courage and that takes leadership. That means doing

         15  what is fair and what is right and that means

         16  opposing the imposition of landmarking on Fieldston

         17  homeowners. Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         19  Council Member Comrie.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I don't know

         21  which can of worms to open first. You said that you

         22  disseminated some rules 18 months ago as a draft and

         23  you never got any type of feedback from Landmarks

         24  one way or the another. You have a copy of that?

         25                 MR. MOERDLER: Approximately 18 months
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          2  ago, Oliver --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Pardon me.

          4  This is not a back and forth between you and Council

          5  Member Koppell. I'm talking to you right now. Do you

          6  have a copy of that you can give to me?

          7                 MR. MOERDLER: No, I will provide it

          8  to you though. I don't have it with me.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         10                 MR. MOERDLER: But I can tell you if I

         11  may, Mr. Councilman, Oliver and Bob Tierney were

         12  there as was the Council to the Landmarks

         13  Commission.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. You

         15  spoke about that you authored the original landmarks

         16  bill.

         17                 MR. MOERDLER: That's correct. Richard

         18  Alridge's bill was introduced prior to the original

         19  bill that finally was adopted.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You are now on

         21  Community Board 8.

         22                 MR. MOERDLER: I have been for 20

         23  years. I was the first Chairman of Community Board

         24  8.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: How many
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          2  Fieldston members are on Board 8?

          3                 MR. MOERDLER: My best guess is about

          4  four or five. Pardon me? Three, I stand corrected.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I thought I

          6  heard the Chair say that all of the Fieldston

          7  members voted for it.

          8                 MR. MOERDLER: That's entirely

          9  possible. I was a distinct minority together with

         10  three others as I said before.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You made an

         12  assertion that the report was fatally flawed, that

         13  all research prior to 1984 was fake.

         14                 MR. MOERDLER: No, I didn't say that.

         15  I said the following. Prior to 1934, no requirement

         16  existed for any certificate of occupancy in an

         17  apartment of buildings. Therefore, in many buildings

         18  including my Dwight Lloyd Baum home did not have

         19  building plans filed for them. They weren't required

         20  too. Therefore, you can't go to the Building

         21  Department and get building plans for them. Number

         22  two, the only reason you can get any such records is

         23  if there were a subsequent amendment to the building

         24  plans and a refiling had to be made in more recent

         25  years. I said to you, therefore, that unless, unless
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          2  somebody refiled after that date, you won't find a

          3  building department file. Go and look. I did.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Let me just

          5  ask you one specific. 1520 Iselin Avenue, the date

          6  supposedly built is 1927, '28, the architect is

          7  James Baum. The original owner is Nicolas Bates. The

          8  style is Mediterranean Revival, two stories,

          9  structure material wood frame covered with stucco,

         10  major alterations not apparent, notable features

         11  non- historic rod iron perimeter fence, blue stone

         12  walkway, asphalt block driveway, mature trees. None

         13  of these descriptions that I've seen because

         14  Chairman Tierney testified earlier that these are

         15  all visuals descriptions from the street. They were

         16  never ringing door bells and looking at blue prints

         17  or looking at properties. They were all visual

         18  descriptions.

         19                 MR. MOERDLER: That's my point.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So why would a

         21  certificate of occupancy be germane?

         22                 MR. MOERDLER: Because many of those

         23  features could have been added in more recent years.

         24  Many of those features are not necessarily the

         25  original features and lastly, while Baum's houses

                                                            123

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  are quite distinctive. As I said, I live in one.

          3  Even though they are distinctive, unless you have an

          4  engineer's report or an architectural application on

          5  file in the Department of Buildings, you would have

          6  no way of determining who the architect was.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Are you

          8  saying that particular piece of property is guess

          9  work?

         10                 MR. MOERDLER: I'm sorry?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You are saying

         12  that all of these properties then were assessed as

         13  opposed to guess work as opposed to real?

         14                 MR. MOERDLER: No, I will tell you

         15  what I think happened because I took the testimony

         16  of the people who came before the Land Use

         17  Committee, the Community Board. One after another

         18  the residents of the community testified, that

         19  somebody came on their land without their permission

         20  and walked around it and took notes. I accept that.

         21  That's what happened and you can take a note and you

         22  can find that its stucco today. And you can find

         23  many of the other characteristics. That's entirely

         24  valid. But you can't find that that was the original

         25  creation and it is therefore historic.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Does

          3  that in your mind constitute whether or not an area

          4  should be historic? Whether or not you could find

          5  the original documents on it? Isn't it part of

          6  creating a designated area just an natural beauty of

          7  an area as it previously consists to ensure that the

          8  future of an area was concerned?

          9                 MR. MOERDLER: That's where my point

         10  comes first. I tried to Landmark and to designate

         11  and the old Metropolitan Opera House. I lost in the

         12  New York Court of Appeals in a case called Keystone

         13  Associates against Moerdler. The Court of Appeals

         14  wrote in its opinion that while it agreed with me,

         15  that there were nice features to it, you can't do

         16  that stuff. Let me read to you from Judge Keating's

         17  opinion.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I understand

         19  what you are saying, but isn't all landmarking

         20  somewhat subjective?

         21                 MR. MOERDLER: Yes and that's part of

         22  the problem. Because your historic white door may

         23  not be my non- historic blue door. Your view of what

         24  is right and my view of what is good architecture

         25  may totally disagree. And you may be right and I may
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          2  be wrong. But my problem lies in the following. When

          3  I have a bureaucrat make that judgment for me and I

          4  pay $5 or $10,000 for an architect or a lawyer or an

          5  engineer to get me through two months, three months,

          6  six months and then I have to go before the Land Use

          7  Committee of the Community Board as somebody is

          8  coming on the fourth of April and then have to go to

          9  the whole community board and then get there, it

         10  seems to me that's excessive. It's excessive for one

         11  reason and I can be wrong. I don't pretend to know

         12  everything. But I will tell you this, we passed --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Quiet, quiet,

         14  please.

         15                 MR. MOERDLER: We passed a special

         16  natural area district strengthening for this area to

         17  provide the protections of the area for the

         18  topography and for other considerations. We provided

         19  for down zoning for much of this area in order to

         20  provide other protections. What trigger this latest

         21  outburst of this plan was when three families tried

         22  to do an enlargement. A question that another member

         23  of the Council asked. One of them put this

         24  enlargement on top of a garage on Indian Road not

         25  far from where a former Chairman of the Landmarks
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          2  Commission lives, put this one on and there was holy

          3  hell to pay. It was for his mother and his father

          4  and the four children.

          5                 The next one put this extension on

          6  Fieldston and West 246th Street and the gaskets

          7  blew. We had McMansion, you've referenced to it. But

          8  all hell broke loose when this old house had two

          9  extensions built, one on each side and that was

         10  known as the McMansion on Fieldston, I believe and

         11  246th Street. That is what caused this. Why? In each

         12  case, the family had young children and it was

         13  growing and they needed room for those kids. And

         14  there were people moving into the neighborhood who

         15  wanted to move up. There are those people who hold

         16  the view, I got mine and I'm going to kick the

         17  ladder down so the guy behind me can't get it. I

         18  don't subscribe to that view.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What are the

         20  present status of those alterations?

         21                 MR. MOERDLER: Which alterations?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The one to

         23  three that you just mentioned.

         24                 MR. MOERDLER: All three of these and

         25  if I may mark them for the record and I will hand
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          2  them up and endorsed on the back. All three of these

          3  are finished now. This one, if I may, is one that

          4  the Fieldston Property Owners approved.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Did the

          6  Fieldston Property Owners oppose those three

          7  alterations?

          8                 MR. MOERDLER: No, no, no. But they

          9  did, we sent to them this house. This house by the

         10  way isn't complete. I took this photograph this

         11  morning at 7:00. This house is on the corner of

         12  246th Street. This house is not even complete. It is

         13  now a landmark. When he puts the door in finally, he

         14  paints it white instead of blue, he is going to have

         15  to go put a permit application in. They approved it.

         16  May I hand this up for the record?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you. I'm

         18  done.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Let's be clear.

         20  The Landmarks Commissioner testified earlier today

         21  that just because a designation takes place doesn't

         22  mean enlargements and additions are not allowed.

         23  That's a point of information. As he also committed

         24  on the record that if this designation is

         25  maintained, they would promulgate rules and that
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          2  staff level permits for basic things would be given.

          3  You wouldn't need to go to the Landmarks Commission

          4  to paint your house, to get air conditioners,

          5  potentially even to do other modifications. So I

          6  want to be on the clear on the record and reiterate

          7  the Commissioner's testimony and it is how as I

          8  understand it as well.

          9                 Additions that were made, whether

         10  they are in these photos are not, very well may have

         11  been approved by the LPC. When I went there and I

         12  asked, when I toured, I specifically asked about

         13  individual properties where additions had been made,

         14  the staff of LPC who would be making those

         15  determinations in the future, if those kind of

         16  additions would be permitted, and they said that

         17  they believe so. That said. I don't want to engage

         18  in -- I don't know if Council Member Koppell you

         19  have a question or we can --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, first

         21  of all, I do have a question, Ms. Rodman. Did you

         22  hand the petition in? Okay. What I would ask, Madam

         23  Chair, if you are willing to do so will ask the full

         24  Chair, I would like a neutral party to take those

         25  petitions, get a list of the property owners because
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          2  I know there may be a 130 signatures there. I don't

          3  think that represents what they say it does. Because

          4  there are lots, there are people who own more than

          5  one lot. You have to make first a decision are we

          6  talking about a majority of people or majority of

          7  lots or majority of properties. I don't believe,

          8  quite frankly, there are 257 properties and based on

          9  my review of petitions, I don't believe there are

         10  130 owners of properties that are opposed to

         11  landmarking. But maybe I'm wrong. What I would ask

         12  is someone from the Committee look at it.

         13                 The other thing I would like to say,

         14  Madam Chair is this to make it very clear. I sat on

         15  this Landmark Subcommittee for four years. There

         16  were instances where there was one property and the

         17  owner of that property was opposed to landmarking.

         18  Just one. There didn't have to be a vote. There was

         19  one. A unanimous property owner vote against

         20  landmarking and we still approved landmarking. When

         21  I say this is not subject to a vote, it is because

         22  landmarking is something that is important not only

         23  to property owners, but to everybody in the area,

         24  everybody in the City; in some sense maybe even

         25  everybody in the country and the owner does not
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          2  control the process.

          3                 Should we pay attention to owners?

          4  Absolutely. But is this a vote situation? Absolutely

          5  not. It's not a vote situation. That doesn't mean we

          6  shouldn't look at what people feel and try and be

          7  responsive. Even if it is true, and I don't believe

          8  it is, that 130 out of 257 are against landmarking,

          9  even if that is true, my decision is not based on

         10  that alone. That would not convince me to vote

         11  against it. I make that as a public matter because

         12  I'm a publicly elected official. But nobody in this

         13  room should feel that this is subject to -- the only

         14  vote this is subject to as a democracy is a vote,

         15  number one of the Landmark Commission, because they

         16  have that power under the charter and ultimately a

         17  vote of the 51 members of this Council because we

         18  have that power under the charter.

         19                 MS. RODMAN: I would only respond that

         20   --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I'm sorry. But we

         22  need to move on to the next panel. I would agree

         23  that we should take a look at the petitions. I would

         24  state for the record that the petitions themselves

         25  have never been submitted to me despite what you may
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          2  have read in the press. I have here something that

          3  was received or dated March 22 that I received

          4  yesterday. That is just an analysis from the

          5  Homeowners Association of the names. I have never

          6  personally received the petitions myself and we can

          7  take a look at those. But I wanted to state that

          8  clearly for the record. I thank you all for

          9  testifying.

         10                 There are five organizations left

         11  that have people testifying on their behalf. So if

         12  the Sergeant could bring one more chair, maybe we

         13  could do this panel together. This is a panel in

         14  favor. Christabel Gough from Society for the

         15  Architecture of the City; Rick Bell, American

         16  Institute of Architects; Roger Lang, New York

         17  Landmarks Conservancy; Frampton Tolbert, Historic

         18  District Council and Lisa Kersavage, MAS.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Madam Chair,

         20  while they are sitting down, I do want to say that

         21  as an elected official, I want to appreciated

         22  particularly the long life- time contribution of Mr.

         23  Moerdler to the community, even though he and I

         24  vehemently disagree on this and Mr. Perla and the

         25  Rodman's have also been contributing members of the
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          2  community. I didn't want my feelings of negativism

          3  to eliminate my appreciation for their

          4  participation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I appreciate you

          6  saying that. I think we have been engaging and

          7  discussing with each panel and examining this issue

          8  in more depth than one would normally have at a

          9  Landmarks Subcommittee hearing which I think is

         10  appropriate and healthy debate and discussion is a

         11  positive thing. Lisa, we could begin with you and

         12  work backwards. State your name for the record.

         13                 MS. KERSAVAGE: My name is Lisa

         14  Kersavage. I'm here representing the Municipal Art

         15  Society. The Society very strongly supports the

         16  designation of the Fieldston Historic District in

         17  the Bronx and urges you to sustain its landmarks

         18  designation. Fieldston represents a body of

         19  residential architecture, of classical revival

         20  periods that is unrivaled nationally. It is also an

         21  outstanding example of a garden suburb where

         22  picturesque homes are integrated into a hilly wood

         23  landscape. Quality of architecture in Fieldston was

         24  seen as so skilled that many houses were published

         25  in leading architectural journals.
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          2                 Since its inception, the neighborhood

          3  has been home to prominent New Yorkers like three

          4  time Mayor Fiorello LaGuardia, who famously read the

          5  comics to children over the radio from his home at

          6  5020 Goodridge Avenue. There is a reason that

          7  communities across the City are clamoring for

          8  historic district designation. It is the best tool

          9  to protect the historic architecture and sense of

         10  place in a neighborhood. Furthermore, a study

         11  conducted by the Independent Budget Office found

         12  that designation stabilizes and in fact may increase

         13  property values.

         14                 For 40 years, the Commission has

         15  reviewed and approved proposals for alterations,

         16  additions, and new buildings in the City's 80

         17  historic districts. They have proved themselves to

         18  be open and flexible to changes to designated

         19  buildings. Furthermore, applications for minor work

         20  go through an expedited staff review.

         21                 Clearly, Landmarks Preservation

         22  Commission has listened to the hue and cry of

         23  residents, preservationists and City Council members

         24  to designate more buildings and districts outside of

         25  Manhattan. The record before the Commission was
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          2  clear on the outstanding merits of the Fieldston

          3  Historic District and we agree with them that this

          4  district deserves the protection of the law,

          5  notwithstanding the opposition of some property

          6  owners. We urge you to uphold this designation.

          7  Thank you.

          8                 MR. LANG: Good afternoon, Chair

          9  Lappin and members of the Subcommittee. I'm Roger

         10  Lang, speaking on behalf of the New York Landmarks

         11  Conservancy. The Conservancy supported designation

         12  of Fieldston as a historic district and I'm here

         13  today to urge your Subcommittee, the Land Use

         14  Committee, and eventually the full Council to affirm

         15  this designation. It's a fact that in 40 years since

         16  the passage of the Landmarks law, 83 historic

         17  districts and 11 extensions have been designated

         18  throughout the five boroughs. Many were

         19  controversial at the time. But they did not remain

         20  so. Let me offer a few thoughts as to why that's the

         21  case.

         22                 First, because homeowners came to

         23  realize what the City's Independent Budget Office

         24  study recently concluded; district designation does

         25  not reduce property values or inhibit resales, but
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          2  rather enhances them. Also, because LPC's regulatory

          3  role protects the neighborhoods by keeping

          4  inappropriate developments out of historic districts

          5  or shaping them into proposals more acceptable to

          6  the community.

          7                 Finally, because the LPC has

          8  administered the 23,000 plus buildings in these

          9  districts fairly and efficiently, we are confident

         10  that the Commission will continue to do so in

         11  regulating the changes to properties in the

         12  Fieldston Historic District. Council Members, there

         13  are still residents in neighborhoods such as

         14  Victorian Flatbush or areas of Bedford- Stuyvesant

         15  who are waiting their turn at bat before LPC. They

         16  are clamoring for designation, not opposing it.

         17                 Residents of other neighborhoods like

         18  Murray Hill, Stapleton and Douglaston for example,

         19  wanted historic district so badly that they

         20  struggled for many years or decades to achieve

         21  designation. Again, it wasn't overcoming internal

         22  opposition that delayed them; it was the inability

         23  of the Commission to designate more than a few

         24  districts a year.

         25                 In conclusion, we hope that you have
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          2  toured the area or seen pictures of the Fieldston

          3  district and read the Designation Report. That's all

          4  it takes for you to appreciate what a special sense

          5  of place it has. We think Fieldston clearly merited

          6  the designation as a district and we hope you will

          7  agree. We thank you for the opportunity to express

          8  the Conservancy's views.

          9                 MR. TALBORT: I'm Frampton Talbort

         10  speaking on behalf of the Historic Districts

         11  Council. The Historic Districts Council is the

         12  Citywide advocate for New York's historic districts

         13  and neighborhoods meriting preservation. We greatly

         14  appreciate the opportunity to testify in favor of

         15  the designated Fieldston Historic District in the

         16  Bronx.

         17                 I didn't know that there was anything

         18  like this in the City, were literally the words of

         19  almost all of HDC's Designation Committee when we

         20  went to visit Fieldston a few years ago. This

         21  reflects the reality that the northwest Bronx,

         22  except for the majority of major highways and

         23  perhaps the Hudson corridor are almost unknown to

         24  many New Yorkers. Clearly, Fieldston is a unique

         25  treasure of the City and that simple fact, that this
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          2  area has something so special, something so unique

          3  and precious is why the Landmarks Commission

          4  designated it as the City's 84th historic district.

          5                 There are real threats to the

          6  integrity of the community. Most obvious are the

          7  inappropriate enlargements of existing buildings and

          8  the beginning threat of teardowns. Even if the

          9  architectural style is reasonably appropriate, the

         10  relationship of the building to site and the

         11  landscape would be inescapably altered, almost

         12  certainly for the worse. Connection with the

         13  historic past would be lost and the distinctive

         14  character of the area would be irreducibly

         15  diminished.

         16                 This is one of the many benefits that

         17  designation would bring. The zoning provisions for

         18  the area and the mapped Special Natural District

         19  themselves give only limited protection against

         20  changes of this type that are already threatening

         21  the beauty of the area. Well- crafted Landmarks

         22  guidelines utilizing the designation report for the

         23  new historic district could reinforce preserving the

         24  balance and relationship of buildings and landscape,

         25  much as they have for the Douglaston Historic
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          2  District.

          3                 Indeed, the designation of the

          4  district assumes positive change. Twenty- five years

          5  ago when designating the Ditmas Park Historic

          6  District, the LPC stated, Over the years, many of

          7  the houses in the district have suffered from

          8  alterations which do not conform to the architects

          9  original intentions. Many have had their original

         10  siding replaced by synthetic shingles and aluminum,

         11  porches have been enclosed and details removed.

         12  Despite these unfortunate alterations, the District

         13  retains much of its turn of the century ambience.

         14                 The low scale nature of the

         15  development has been retained, the plantings have

         16  flourished, and the buildings are well maintained.

         17  It is hoped that historic district designation will

         18  aid in the preservation of buildings that are still

         19  intact. Time has shown that the designation has

         20  benefitted Ditmas Park so much that the surrounding

         21  communities of Midwood Park and Fiske Terrace are

         22  actively seeking historic district status. Is there

         23  any reason to believe that Fieldston will not follow

         24  this pattern? HDC urges the City Council to affirm

         25  the landmark status of Fieldston.
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          2                 MR. FISHER: Good afternoon. My name

          3  is Ken Fisher and I'm testifying on behalf of Rick

          4  Bell and the American Institute of Architects. I

          5  just want to say in passing, Madam Chair, that as

          6  previous Chair of the Subcommittee, I think that you

          7  are doing a great job today. But get used to it,

          8  every hearing will be like this. I also speak as

          9  someone who represented all or part of seven

         10  historic districts and I personally live in a rather

         11  undistinguished 35 year- old brick house in the

         12  otherwise distinguished Brooklyn Heights Historic

         13  District and I've never had a problem with the

         14  Landmarks Commission.

         15                 We have a statement from the AIA that

         16  we will submit to you separately. But I want to

         17  address a couple of the specific points that were

         18  made today. First of all, this is not a popularity

         19  contest regardless of whatever the petitions may

         20  show or not. The charter and trust of Landmarks

         21  Commission with the duty to investigate and make

         22  recommendations to you and it gives you rather a

         23  unique power. It's only the power to reject and it

         24  is only a power to be exercised where it is an

         25  egregious abuse of discretion or where it conflicts
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          2  with some other policy initiative of the Council. I

          3  have some familiarity with those circumstances. They

          4  are not present here. I would also say that there

          5  any number of other historic districts that

          6  Fieldston compares rather favorably with.

          7                 Putting that aside, however, I want

          8  to make two other points to you about what I think

          9  is some of the red herrings that have been thrown up

         10  here today. One is about the architectural style of

         11  the district. It is ironic that at the same time

         12  that Mr. Baum is accused of being a hack, the

         13  district is attacked because he didn't design all

         14  the buildings. And by the way on behalf of the AIA,

         15  I want to make a point of noting that he received

         16  the Gold Medal from the Architectural League in 1923

         17  and a reward from the AIA in 1932.

         18                 Secondly, it is hard for me to

         19  imagine the deed restrictions that have expired by

         20  their own terms can be substituted for with more

         21  vague deed restrictions that obviously were intended

         22  to refer to something else. With all due respect, I

         23  think that's complete red herring. But even if I'm

         24  wrong about that and the property owners had the

         25  ability to do something about it and not to question

                                                            141

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  their good faith, their sincerity, their willingness

          3  or anything else about the obvious care that they

          4  bring to this community, the fact is, the fact is

          5  that 25 of the houses that were identified as being

          6  no style were either altered or erected after those

          7  deed restrictions expired in 1930.

          8                 For the past 75 years, what we have

          9  seen is not houses being in character with the

         10  neighborhood being created in that area, but houses

         11  and character of the neighborhood being altered

         12  beyond recognition or destroyed. And its for that

         13  reason that we would urge you to adopt this historic

         14  district.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Could you repeat

         16  for a moment, how many houses have been built since

         17  the deed restrictions expired? The number you just

         18  gave, one more time. Twenty- five?

         19                 MR. FISHER: Twenty- five either built

         20  or altered beyond recognition to the point where

         21  they were designated as no style. In other words,

         22  some of those may have even been Baum houses that

         23  have been so altered that the Commission doesn't

         24  find them to be contributing to the district any

         25  longer.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          3                 MS. GOUGH: I'm Christabel Gough

          4  speaking for the Society for the Architecture of the

          5  City. In reviewing the proposed Fieldston Historic

          6  District, process and the history of the law are the

          7  pivotal issues. Landmarking is a legitimate,

          8  established exercise of governmental power in the

          9  public interest, upheld by the Supreme Court. When a

         10  designation reaches the Council, two agencies have

         11  given their expert opinion. Fieldston has been

         12  chosen by the expert Landmarks staff and

         13  commissioners as an outstanding example of a planned

         14  suburban community in the City, located on a

         15  picturesque hilly terrain with rock outcroppings and

         16  a forest of trees. It is also a neighborhood filled

         17  with fine examples of early 20th century residential

         18  architecture, including many distinguished houses by

         19  Dwight James Baum.

         20                 The City Planning Commission has

         21  evaluated this designation and finds that it will

         22  preserve the character of the area and it is not in

         23  conflict with any projected public improvements or

         24  plans for development, growth or renewal. Both

         25  agencies, exercising their mandate, within their
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          2  sphere of expertise, have ruled that this

          3  designation is in the public interest. The benefits

          4  of landmarking far outweigh any inconveniences.

          5  There is a long history of economic success under

          6  historic district designation. Designations preserve

          7  the uniqueness of New York's neighborhoods and

          8  provide historical context for future generations to

          9  relate to, fostering pride in the place where you

         10  may live and giving the City a unity in diversity.

         11  We strongly support this designation and urge the

         12  Council to consider it as an action in the public

         13  interest, beneficial to the City. Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Madam Chair,

         15  I would like to ask former Councilman Fisher a

         16  question if I may.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Please.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I know you

         19  are here as an advocate but I'm sure you will answer

         20  this question forth rightly notwithstanding. You

         21  live in a historic district. Did you when you were

         22  in the Council represent areas that were historic

         23  districts?

         24                 MR. FISHER: Seven of them including

         25  one or two that I helped create.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I represent

          3  in my district now before Fieldston only a very

          4  small part of Riverdale as a historic district. So I

          5  don't have a lot of experience with the law over the

          6  four years that I have been in the Council. How many

          7  years were you in the Council?

          8                 MR. FISHER: Almost 11.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: In those 11

         10  years, what was your experience with respect to

         11  those areas that were historic districts? Did you

         12  get a lot of complaints from homeowners who wanted

         13  to make alterations?

         14                 MR. FISHER: I can't remember any.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Any at all?

         16                 MR. FISHER: I don't recall any as I

         17  sit here today.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: How about

         19  many homeowners, people who owned homes rather than

         20  businesses?

         21                 MR. FISHER: Thousands.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And you don't

         23  even remember any complaints about the Landmark

         24  Commission?

         25                 MR. FISHER: No. Well, I do remember
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          2  some complaints about the Landmarks Commission, but

          3  they weren't related to those kinds of alterations.

          4  In fact, I actually recall going up to visit in your

          5  district which had some concerns about what the

          6  implications were going to be for their ability to

          7  expand.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

          9                 MR. FISHER: In my experience, most

         10  property owners worked cooperatively with the

         11  Landmarks Commission. They need more resources.

         12  There are certainly things that could be improved.

         13  But I don't recall any complaints during the ten

         14  year. By the way, Council Member, there has been

         15  reference to a study that was made, I think it had

         16  to do with property values of homes in historic

         17  districts compared to similar properties elsewhere,

         18  I commissioned that study together with former

         19  Council Member Eristoff. We didn't actually get the

         20  data to the IBO that we needed until he became the

         21  Finance Administrator. The study took several years

         22  beyond that to come out and what it found was that

         23  once the properties in historic districts retained

         24  their value or increased their value favorably

         25  compared to similar properties nearby. That's not to
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          2  say that you can tear down any house and build a

          3  skyscraper and it's going to be worth more. But a

          4  house in a historic district compared to a house

          5  outside of it, is going to be better.

          6                 In fact, I remember when we did the

          7  St. George's Historic District, we went up there and

          8  the major opposition came from a real estate broker

          9  who had some property in the district and the day

         10  after we did the designation, he started advertising

         11  that his properties were in the historic district.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I really do

         13  appreciate your comment about your 11 years in the

         14  Council. I think that really ought to give pause to

         15  those who are so concerned that this is going to be

         16  such a different process. Because believe me, we get

         17  complaints all the time at government in my office

         18  and I'm sure you did to. If you had even no

         19  complaints or very limited number of complaints

         20  about the Landmark Commission, I think that ought to

         21  give people some comfort who have these concerns and

         22  that's the concerns that has been expressed to me

         23  most by my constituents.

         24                 MR. FISHER: The instances where

         25  people felt constrained largely had to do with
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          2  commercial enterprises. Store owners who felt that

          3  they couldn't put up the kind of awning or signage

          4  that they want, it was usually not with property

          5  owners. But then most of the property owners knew

          6  that they were buying into a historic district when

          7  they moved in. And it was part of the culture of

          8  what they were helping to accomplish. I understand

          9  the concerns of the folks who are in opposition to

         10  this are sincere. I hope that they are not well

         11  founded.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. Thank

         13  you all very much for testifying. We on the verge of

         14  being kicked out of this room. But we go as long as

         15  we need to go even if we have to move to another

         16  room. This is a panel in opposition. Sharon

         17  Moerdler- Green, Sam Mandel, Theodore Feder and

         18  Kathy Roger. I would ask my colleagues to be as

         19  brief with your questions as we can so that we can

         20  try to remain in this room. Thank you. Please

         21  identify yourself for the record.

         22                 MS. ROGER: Yes, my name is Kathy

         23  Roger.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Actually hold on

         25  one moment. Is one of these people who I called not
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          2  here? We can pull up a fourth who is in opposition.

          3  Doug Falkenburg. Thanks. You can continue.

          4                 MS. ROGER: My name is Kathleen Roger

          5  and I sat on the FPOA Board of Directors for six

          6  years. And I have to tell you after that it saddens

          7  me to see that the people in this room are my

          8  neighbors, many of whom I like a lot. And that we

          9  now have to take sides. It deeply saddens me. But in

         10  that venue, I will tell you that I am in opposition

         11  of the landmarking.

         12                 My husband and I bought a 1920's 11

         13  plus years ago. Believe it or not, it was pretty

         14  much a completely virgin house needing many repairs,

         15  taking many years. We are now in the process of

         16  doing an addition on this house. I could speak of

         17  the tens of thousands of dollars that I have spent

         18  to put new windows in alone. We had 57 to begin

         19  with. We have added more. Every single one has been

         20  put in to what the Landmark would put in as

         21  acceptable windows. I could speak about our new

         22  addition that has gable dormers, cedar planks,

         23  stucco, everything that has been put to make sure

         24  the house looks the way it began. I guess I am

         25  considered one of those amazing stewards.
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          2                 But be that as it may, we tried to

          3  finish this before the landmarking came in and we

          4  were unable to. I am here today to tell this

          5  Commission my new tale of woe. On December 27, we

          6  put in for a sprinkler permit for the inside of our

          7  house. Basically, nothing to the outside was going

          8  to be done. We were told it was a certificate of no

          9  affect. On January 11, it was kicked out by

         10  Landmarks and they told us now that we needed

         11  digital photos to see where the bell was going to be

         12  for the -- if the fireman had to arrive. We sent

         13  those photos in. We waited again weeks to find out.

         14  We then came back to be told that we would need --

         15  no, I'm sorry. The alarm company told me that we had

         16  a bell. They told me that they would used the

         17  existing bell. I told the Landmarks that we would

         18  use the existing bell and nothing would change the

         19  outside of the house whatsoever.

         20                 It took another three weeks for them

         21  to come back to tell me that they now needed cad

         22  drawings of a existing bell that was already on the

         23  outside of my house for a sprinkler system that was

         24  going to be inside. I would like to know from this

         25  Commission, everyone that has spoken here today says
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          2  that it is not going to have any affect. It has cost

          3  me hundreds, over $1,000 to make sure that this gets

          4  done the way the Landmarks wants it to be done. I

          5  think it is unacceptable. So I think that this

          6  Commission needs to really look very carefully

          7  before you just stamp this approval that it is going

          8  to be okay because I do not believe it will be.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I don't think the

         10  mic is on, sir. If you could state your name for the

         11  record.

         12                 MR. FEDER: My name is Ted Feder. I

         13  moved to Fieldston because I was extremely impressed

         14  by its park like setting and that continues to be

         15  protected by the FPOA which pays special attention

         16  to the trees, by zoning ordinances, by the Riverdale

         17  Nature Conservancy, by SNAD, which provides an added

         18  layer of protection for Fieldston's natural features

         19  and topography. Every natural element that

         20  characterizes Fieldston is already very, very

         21  carefully protected. That leaves only the question

         22  of its architecture.

         23                 I'm trained as an art historian in

         24  architectural historian. I head an organization

         25  called Artists Rights Society that defends and
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          2  protects intellectual property rights of many

          3  prominent artists active in the past 100 years.

          4  These include Matisse, Picasso, Polick, Cald.

          5  (phonetic) Most are painters and sculptors, but some

          6  are architects. The architects we represent include

          7  Frank Lloyd Wright, Mies van der Rohe, Walter

          8  Gropius, and Le Gorbusier among others. Allow me to

          9  point out that virtually none of the homes in

         10  Fieldston are original architectural products.

         11  Rather they are imitations of architecture styles to

         12  the past. The earliest examples dating from 1920's

         13  are Tudor Revival. Almost all of Fieldston later

         14  buildings are also derivative drawing from the

         15  Medieval Revival (this was mentioned by Mr.

         16  Tierney), Georgian and American Colonial, Neo-

         17  Classics, Spanish Colony, late Victorian style.

         18                 In the post- war era there was a

         19  spade of contemporary ranch style houses. None of

         20  which were distinguished either by the design or

         21  originality. No architective note participated in

         22  their design. None display the true innovative and

         23  Vanguard qualities associated with outstanding

         24  architectural. Aside from architectural distinction,

         25  another ground for landmarking may occur when a home
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          2  or site is associated with the great historic event.

          3  None of this hold true for any Fieldston's houses.

          4  Partly because all are less than 100 years old and

          5  have not acquired the historic patent that time

          6  occasionally bestows. In some, there is no intrinsic

          7  architectural or historic reason for landmarking.

          8  What distinguishes Fieldston is it natural tree

          9  filled and park line study, not its architecture.

         10  This is already very well protected by existing

         11  regulations.

         12                 Indeed, a convincing argument could

         13  be made that landmarking will affect the great and

         14  deteriorate the Fieldston building stock as

         15  homeowners may increasingly hesitate to undertake

         16  renovation and repairs for fear of running a fail of

         17  the Landmark Commission. Thank you.

         18                 MS. MOERDLER- GREEN: My name is

         19  Sharon Moerdler- Green and I thank you for giving us

         20  the opportunity to speak here. I hope it will not be

         21  for naught. I hope that we can change your views on

         22  this. I'm very concerned about this for a number of

         23  reasons. First, while everyone says it is so easy,

         24  my neighbors, they have lead paint in their house.

         25  They have young children with lead paint levels.
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          2  They want to change their windows. They want to put

          3  in ones that are appropriate styles, but they want

          4  them with aluminum. They are going to have them made

          5  to order so it is the same color. Landmarks says no,

          6  we want wood. We don't care that they you are going

          7  to have to get up there on scaffolding to paint that

          8  all the time, we want wood. I have a problem with

          9  that. It's not appropriate. This is the same color.

         10  I see this time and time again around this area.

         11                 I'm also very concerned about the way

         12  this research was done. As an attorney, I can tell

         13  you that the way this was submitted, if I had

         14  submitted these kind of papers to the appellate

         15  division where I used to work, the judges would have

         16  laughed at me. 4747 Delafield Avenue says no

         17  alterations here; they left them out. 4633 Delafield

         18  Avenue, says no alterations; they left them out.

         19  4593 Fieldston Road, no apparent alterations;

         20  windows were replaced. 4560 Delafield Avenue, they

         21  says no alterations. Alterations were made in '63

         22  and 1980. 4530 Fieldston Road, no apparent

         23  alterations; 1969 alterations were made. 325 College

         24  Road, no apparent alterations; windows were replaced

         25  throughout, other alterations were made. 4780
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          2  Delafield Avenue, they name a few alterations. They

          3  did leave ones out that were made in 1969. It goes

          4  on and on.

          5                 If I submitted work like this, if any

          6  of the people who work in your office submitted work

          7  like this that the Landmark Commission submitted, I

          8  don't think that you would have looked fondly on the

          9  people who worked for you submitting things like

         10  this. I'm very concerned about what's going on here.

         11  And yes, we are waking up in the 99th hour and

         12  unlike others who say, we wake up and say please

         13  landmark us, we are waking up and say please don't

         14  landmark us. We don't want this and like it or not,

         15  we are in the majority. I went door to door for

         16  those petitions and I can tell you, we are in the

         17  majority. If that doesn't matter, then it is a

         18  really sad state of what New York City has come to.

         19  Thank you for your time.

         20                 MR. FALKENBURG: My name is Doug

         21  Falkenburg. I'm at 4549 Delafield Avenue and in fact

         22  this is my old neighborhood. I moved up to Fieldston

         23  after my home in Battery Park City was uninhabitable

         24  after 911. I noticed my home wasn't mentioned in Mr.

         25  Tierney's presentation. There is a reason for that.
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          2  It is a wreck. Since we bought it, we have been

          3  working on it non- stop. We have been renovating it.

          4  Our intent is not to redesign it, but to make it as

          5  good as it once was or even better. I'm a design

          6  engineer and an engineer by profession. I studied at

          7  the MIT School of Vision Design. I think I have a

          8  clue as to what looks good. You may not agree with

          9  it, but I can tell you with landmarking it would be

         10  impossible for me to renovate this home.

         11                 If I have to repitch a gutter or

         12  replace a section of gutter with holes, I cannot go

         13  to the Landmarking Commission every time I need to

         14  do something like that or when I need to replace a

         15  window. It would just make it virtually impossible

         16  to get the house in shape. My impression in

         17  Fieldston, I can't say I like every architectural

         18  design that's present today. Some I like and some I

         19  don't like. My concept of a community is that in a

         20  democracy is that you put with me and I'll put up

         21  with you. We may not agree on taste, but we agree to

         22  live together and to be neighbors. For me, the

         23  landmarking of my home is overly broad. It's

         24  inappropriate and it represents for me a hardship

         25  that I don't know that I can live with.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you for

          3  testifying. I have a question for Mr. Feder. I just

          4  want to be clear. I'm not a 100 percent sure I

          5  understood your testimony. Did you testify that you

          6  in your professional expertise don't believe that

          7  the Medieval Revival, that the English Tudor, that

          8  the Mediterranean, that the Dutch, Georgian

          9  Colonial, that the styles that are displayed in

         10  Fieldston are at all architecturally important?

         11                 MR. FEDER: That's correct. They are

         12  all revivalists and derivative styles. They are

         13  comfortable homes and what's very impressive about

         14  them is that they sit in a park like setting. A

         15  point that I tried to make and the park like setting

         16  and topography which is very carefully protected --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: No, I understand

         18   --

         19                 MR. FEDER: -- Is what distinguishes

         20  Fieldston, that's correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I guess it just

         22  seems to be a quite controversial statement in light

         23  of other --

         24                 MR. FEDER: No, I don't --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: -- Experts and
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          2  architects and planners who have testified today.

          3  You are certainly entitled to that opinion. I just

          4  wanted to make clear that I understood that was your

          5  opinion.

          6                 MR. FEDER: Let me make it clearer if

          7  I can. I taught architectural history at Columbia

          8  and I was in the art history department there. We

          9  never devoted more than passing interest to

         10  derivative or imitative styles. Architectural

         11  history is characterized by originality and

         12  innovation. If you talk about the development of

         13  architecture down through time, you're talking about

         14  innovated architecture; not by imitations and

         15  copies. It's a simple as that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. Do either

         17  of my colleagues have questions? If not, we can move

         18  on to the next panel which will be in favor.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Just a point

         20  of information.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Sure. Council

         22  Member Comrie.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Are you this

         24  gentlemen's daughter?

         25                 MS. MOERDLER- GREEN: I'm very proud
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          2  to say that I am.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I think he

          4  would be proud of you, yes. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: You've both

          6  spoken very passionately and eloquently. We have

          7  Sara Kellerman- Follett, Alan Friedman, Carolyn

          8  Friedman, Marian Turkel. Are all four of you here?

          9  Yes? Did you sign up to testify? Okay. Andrew, if

         10  you want to begin and then we keep going in the same

         11  order.

         12                 MR. MEYERS: My name is Andrew Meyers.

         13  I teach at the Fieldston School. I also have a

         14  degree in architectural history, but I wouldn't put

         15  myself up against the luminaries who have spoken

         16  before me. All of my 43 years, I have lived in

         17  Riverdale and Fieldston. I grew up in Fieldston. But

         18  I am here to speak as one of those young families or

         19  as the representatives of one of those young

         20  families. Last year we purchased a home on Delafield

         21  Avenue, 4673 Delafield and got an architect and

         22  planned a pretty extensive renovation because there

         23  were only two bedrooms and we needed three as one of

         24  those growing families that people have mentioned

         25  before.
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          2                 We applied to the Landmarks

          3  Commission. I believe we were one of the first, if

          4  not the first, since the rules were in effect. It

          5  was a really easy process. It took two weeks. It

          6  cost very little money especially compared to what

          7  we were spending on the house as a whole. They made

          8  two recommendations which were pretty minor changes,

          9  but were useful changes. And our architect who is

         10  not one known to appreciate second guessing of his

         11  designs said that he thought they improved the

         12  design.

         13                 They changed the pitch of the roof

         14  and they asked us to move an exterior stair and it

         15  was easy, it was quick. It was effective and

         16  inexpensive. I'm just wanted to supply that piece of

         17  information. I have lots of other thoughts on what's

         18  been going on here and I would like to say if there

         19  is anybody left in the audience with my 11 seconds

         20  left that I do hope that whatever the decision is

         21  from your Committee that everybody manages to put

         22  this behind us and to get behind that decision

         23  because really I think what everybody wants on

         24  either side is to keep and support the kind of

         25  neighborhood and community that we have. We just
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          2  have different ways of going about it.

          3                 MS. TURKEL: Just a very short history

          4  of what we've been talking about.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Please state your

          6  name.

          7                 MS. TURKEL: Marion Turkel.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          9                 MS. TURKEL: I'm the wife of the first

         10  planning Chairman, Norbert Turkel who in 1973 with

         11  John Zokabie (phonetic) who was then Chairman of the

         12  Planning Commission was instrumental in passing

         13  legislation creating the natural area district.

         14  First in Staten Island and then in Riverdale. Its

         15  protected natural features such as outcroppings,

         16  streams and rocks and kept them from abuse and from

         17  removal.

         18                 Riverdale was then protected from

         19  inappropriate changes, encroachment of apartment

         20  houses, commercial and industrial uses. Property

         21  values were enhanced. Zoning restrictions which had

         22  been in effect were clarified and extended. The

         23  pressure today to densify land use to reduce the

         24  attractiveness of the area is abhorrent to those of

         25  us who have lived here for many years. We feel that
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          2  the progress that is being more or less expressed by

          3  reducing the use of a land use is really not helpful

          4  to the City of New York or to our progeny in the

          5  future. That's about it.

          6                 MR. FRIEDMAN: My name is Alan

          7  Friedman. I have lived in Fieldston for 24 years and

          8  I am a current board member. A recent article in New

          9  York Times described Fieldston as a rare example of

         10  a romantic suburban community. The article then

         11  continued that said, prior to being landmarked,

         12  Fieldston was in danger as owners tore down stately

         13  Tudors and Colonials to build enormous new homes ill

         14  matched to their surroundings. Opponents of

         15  landmarking justified this destructive behavior on

         16  the grounds that Fieldston is neither old enough nor

         17  distinctive enough to be protected.

         18                 This directly contradicts the

         19  opinions of the Landmarks Committee. Opponents of

         20  Fieldston claim that they have a majority and

         21  therefore in a democracy, they should prevail. We

         22  have not been able to check that list but in every

         23  meeting where people have shown up and designated

         24  whether they are for or against, those in favor have

         25  prevailed. So those in favor apparently are much
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          2  more determined than those opposed.

          3                 Opponents of landmarking claimed that

          4  Fieldston residents can get together and preserve

          5  Fieldston without government interference. They

          6  offer this as a compromise. It is not a compromise

          7  at all. Without landmarking, Fieldston simply will

          8  not be preserved. We do not have enforceable

          9  covenants without getting an unanimous vote so that

         10  if you want to protect Fieldston, you need to

         11  landmark it. It's simple as that.

         12                 If landmarking is sustained, present

         13  opponents thereof will be the first to advertise

         14  that they live in a historic district. One of them

         15  already has. If on the other hand, landmarking

         16  should be overturned, the battle will continue.

         17  Because Fieldston's houses need to be preserved and

         18  proponents of landmarking will not rest until they

         19  are. If landmarking is overturned and renovation

         20  continues at its present rate, Fieldston is likely

         21  to resemble a Rhobe Goldbert cartoon (phonetic), one

         22  house on our block now has been liken to a

         23  combination Chinese restaurant and mental

         24  institution. With your help, landmarking will be

         25  sustained and Fieldston will be preserved as a rare
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          2  example of a romantic suburban community. Thank you

          3  for your help.

          4                 MS. FRIEDMAN: Good afternoon, my name

          5  is Carolyn Friedman. I have lived in Fieldston for

          6  24 years. This is my home as pictured in the

          7  encyclopedia of New York City in the Fieldston

          8  section, page 402. I consider it an honor to have my

          9  beautiful home in Fieldston landmarked and a

         10  privilege to have the opportunity of working with

         11  the Landmarks Commission to preserve its character.

         12                 Landmarking in Fieldston is

         13  absolutely necessary. In my block alone, there have

         14  been two recent tear downs and one major expansion

         15  transforming a quaint cottage to an athletic

         16  facility complete with lap pool and a traditional

         17  brick colonial to a porta Tucson columned designated

         18  no style house. Judging from numerous articles in

         19  the press, issues of overdevelopment and destruction

         20  of architecturally significant structures affect

         21  many communities throughout the nation which are

         22  battling to achieve the landmark status which has

         23  already been conferred on Fieldston.

         24                 It is disheartening to hear residents

         25  of Fieldston attempt to defy the designation.
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          2  Defending their individual rights at the expense of

          3  the community as a whole and in the guise of

          4  promoting self- regulation by an Architectural

          5  Review Board with no expertise or authority to

          6  regulate; creating a situation which would likely

          7  result in on- going strife. Worse yet are their

          8  false claims of religious and economic

          9  discrimination which only served to undermine valid

         10  claims of discrimination when and where they truly

         11  exist.

         12                 I trust that you recognize the

         13  reality of the situation and can count on your

         14  support of landmarking in order to preserve and

         15  enhance our magnificent homes and surroundings.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         18  much. Okay. There are only two more people scheduled

         19  to testify in opposition. So we are going to do a

         20  split panel. This is Kerry Konstantin and Alan

         21  Rosenthal. Are they both here? We are going to keep

         22  moving then. Barbara Michaels, is Barbara Michaels

         23  here? And Martin Zelnik? Martin Zelnik and Barbara

         24  Michaels are in favor and Kerry Konstantin and if

         25  Alan Rosenthal is here, those two are in opposition.
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          2  Whether or not he testifies it will still be

          3  recorded into the record his view.

          4                 MS. KONSTANTIN: My name is Kerry

          5  Konstantin. I am a homeowner in Fieldston and I'm

          6  urging you to reject landmark status for all of the

          7  homes in Fieldston. I have previous experience with

          8  the Landmarks Commission as the President and

          9  Treasurer of a co- op building in Manhattan that

         10  received landmark status. I moved out of the City

         11  into a home that is now hopefully not being

         12  landmarked.

         13                 I want to tell you what that means.

         14  It means if my children, if my 12- year- old

         15  daughter breaks another window, which she has done

         16  two or three times in the last six years or if my

         17  teenage son throws a football through another

         18  window, which he has done, I need to go to Landmarks

         19  to replace my window. It's ridiculous. It is a

         20  tremendous burden. Anyone who tells you that it is

         21  not an expensive, time consuming process, something

         22  that doesn't just sap your energy has either been

         23  very lucky or hasn't been entirely truthful. I'm

         24  sorry, it's just true.

         25                 If you pass this, you are imposing a
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          2  layer of bureaucracy on people who don't need it,

          3  who have self- governed and honestly self- policed

          4  themselves for a number of years in the past and

          5  we've done it quite well. We don't need -- you are

          6  not talking about just historic status, you are

          7  talking about additional regulation. You are talking

          8  about imposing fines and fees on people who don't

          9  need it. We've done brilliantly in the past. Just to

         10  underscore how difficult it is to work with

         11  Landmarks, I want you to know that the opponents of

         12  landmarking in Fieldston have under the freedom of

         13  information act or asked Landmarks, I guess, for all

         14  the files. We've been stonewalled since early

         15  January. Just one example. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Either one of

         17  you. Go ahead. State your name for the record,

         18  please.

         19                 MS. MICHAELS: My name is Barbara

         20  Michaels. I have lived in the Bronx all my life and

         21  have lived in Riverdale in apartments first and now

         22  in a house in Fieldston. I'm not going to counter,

         23  I'm very much in favor of Landmarks. I've devoted my

         24  volunteer life to preserving land and preserving the

         25  area of Riverdale. I was one of the founders of the
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          2  Friends of the Greenbelt which was the organization

          3  that is now gotten to be the Riverdale Natural

          4  Preservancy. I have spent a lot of time trying to

          5  preserve this neighborhood.

          6                 Rather than going into the back and

          7  forth on Fieldston, I care very much about the whole

          8  neighborhood. Riverdale is dependent on Fieldston

          9  being protected and declared a historic district

         10  because it is essential place for all of the

         11  Riverdale area and to the northwest Bronx. As a

         12  child when I didn't live in Riverdale, we have gone

         13  up and picnicked on the Fieldston school property

         14  actually and around in that area because it was such

         15  a lovely, beautiful area.

         16                 I'm going to ask your gentleman to

         17  pass a letter that was written by a Fieldston

         18  homeowner and was in the Riverdale Press saying why

         19  there was just four reasons why the historic

         20  district should occur and what the opposition is and

         21  I will ask them to pass these out.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Is there a

         23  Sergeant? Thank you very much.

         24                 MS. MICHAELS: In conclusion, let me

         25  just read something to you. It has been said that
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          2  the values of a community can be read in part by

          3  what it chooses to save. Fieldston is part of a

          4  valuable community. It is a unique place. It is 100

          5  years old. It should be preserved. It is a treasure

          6  which we must be prepared to keep as it is. Thank

          7  you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          9                 MR. ZELNIK: Hi, my name is Martin

         10  Zelnik. I'm an architect and I've already submitted

         11  to everybody on this panel my position and I'm not

         12  going to repeat that. I would like to thank the

         13  panel by the way for responding to what I wrote. I

         14  think at least half of the members of this

         15  Commission have actually read what I wrote and sent

         16  me a letter back. It makes me feel very good.

         17                 I'm a architect and I moved to

         18  Riverdale in 1947 and my first residence was in

         19  Fieldston on Fieldston Road. I probably know

         20  Fieldston better than most people here. I've lived

         21  in Riverdale for almost 60 years, almost all my life

         22  and the first ten years of my life, I lived in

         23  Fieldston on Fieldston Road. In addition to being an

         24  architect, I'm a professor of design at FIT and I've

         25  also done architectural work in front of the
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          2  Landmarks Preservation. I've built several buildings

          3  in Riverdale including the design of the Hebrew

          4  Institute of Riverdale. So I know it very well.

          5                 I also know Riverdale very well and

          6  when somebody asks me where am I from, where do I

          7  live? I must tell you, I never say that I'm from

          8  Riverdale. I love to tell people that I'm from the

          9  Bronx and one of the reasons I like to say that is

         10  that I'm very proud of the Riverdale section of the

         11  Bronx and the Bronx is part of the City. And if we

         12  were are talking about people who are stewards of

         13  architecture, I think it is important to know or

         14  recognize that this Committee is actually the

         15  steward of architecture of the five boroughs and not

         16  just to Riverdale and not just to Fieldston. What we

         17  have to do is look at the big picture and see why we

         18  need to really support the designation of this

         19  district.

         20                 In all the years, I have actually

         21  noted a major deterioration of the architecture

         22  within Fieldston in terms of what is being built and

         23  what's been added to and my fear is some of the

         24  beautiful buildings, some of the beautiful

         25  derivative buildings in Fieldston are going to be
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          2  destroyed if there is not this control. Derivative

          3  architecture, in fact, is something that is studied

          4  in architecture all the time. Notwithstanding what

          5  the professor told you from Columbia, all of

          6  architecture is derivative rather it is Italian

          7  resonance or Brogue. We are always looking at the

          8  evolution of architecture and in Fieldston, the

          9  architecture there is classically beautiful and

         10  derivative and it is worth preserving. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: A very brief

         14  question because I think it is important to clarify.

         15  I'm sorry I didn't catch the name of the young lady

         16  in the middle. I didn't catch your name. Ms.

         17  Konstantin, whoever told you needed to get

         18  permission to replace a window pane?

         19                 MS. KONSTANTIN: No, not a window

         20  pane, Council Member Koppell. My window needs to be

         21  replaced. I need permission to get my window

         22  replaced.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I thought you

         24  said if your daughter broke a window, you would need

         25  permission.
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          2                 MS. KONSTANTIN: Yes, my daughter has

          3  broken a window. Not a pane, a window.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I don't

          5  believe you need permission to repair a window. And

          6  the other thing you mentioned --

          7                 MR. KONSTANTIN: I beg your pardon,

          8  sir, to replace the window, I do need permission,

          9  yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: If you are

         11  going to replace it, yes. But that's a different

         12  thing if she broke a window and you have to fix it,

         13  you don't need permission. With respect to the

         14  stewardship issue, give me one example and you don't

         15  need to do it now, one example over the last 30

         16  years when the Fieldston Property Owners Association

         17  has approved or turned down any addition or

         18  construction. You do not need to do it now.

         19                 MS. KONSTANTIN: I'm sorry, was that

         20  question directed at me?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes, because

         22  you said that the stewardship meant that Fieldston

         23  Property Owners Association has somehow made sure

         24  that things would be done appropriately. You said

         25  that in your testimony.
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          2                 MS. KONSTANTIN: No, I don't believe I

          3  said that. I said as a former president and

          4  treasurer of a co- op, I dealt with Landmarks and I

          5  found them to be tremendously difficult to deal

          6  with.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, I

          8  understood that part. I was talking about what you

          9  said about -- there is a lot of misunderstanding

         10  here --

         11                 MS. KONSTANTIN: Yes, tremendously. I

         12  would agree.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: -- From my

         14  colleagues about Fieldston Property Owners

         15  Association does not either approve or turn down any

         16  improvement to a house or any reconstruction of a

         17  house. And they haven't done that in 50 years.

         18                 MS. KONSTANTIN: No, I was speaking

         19  directly about how much trouble it is to deal with

         20  the Landmarks Commission. And maybe the

         21  misunderstanding was that I said under the Freedom

         22  of Information Act, we have asked the Landmarks

         23  Preservation Commission for information. We have not

         24  received that. I believe they have been stonewalling

         25  us. I said that to just underscore how difficult it
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          2  was.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: If I

          4  misunderstood, I apologize. I thought you to say

          5  something about Fieldston Property Owners being able

          6  to govern themselves.

          7                 MS. KONSTANTIN: I believe we are. I

          8  believe we even police ourselves. When I did

          9  renovations on my home, I had people knocking on my

         10  door telling when I should be working and when I

         11  shouldn't. I even received written typed out notes

         12  about what I should and should not be doing. I

         13  believe we not only govern ourselves now, but we

         14  police ourselves.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Are you

         16  talking about what hours you can work are you

         17  talking about the renovations you made?

         18                 MS. KONSTANTIN: I'm talking about

         19  living in Fieldston and conducting a renovation.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Did anybody

         21  tell you from Fieldston Property Owners what you

         22  could do to renovate your house?

         23                 MS. KONSTANTIN: No, and I would hope

         24  that I never have to ask that question of Landmarks

         25  either.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

          3  much. Next panel, please. Travis Epes, Robert Henke,

          4  Alec Diacoce, Leona Epstein. Is Leona here? Leona

          5  left. Okay. And Joyce Pilsner. These are four in

          6  favor. All the remaining witnesses are in favor.

          7  Please get started.

          8                 MR. EPES: Good afternoon. First let

          9  me thank all of the members here for their time,

         10  their attention and their patience. My name is

         11  Travis Epes. I have been a resident of Riverdale for

         12  most of my life and a resident of Fieldston for 30

         13  years. Consequently, I am intimately familiar with

         14  the contribution that Fieldston makes to the life of

         15  the larger communities of Riverdale and the Bronx in

         16  terms of providing a quality environment.

         17                 Fieldston is one of the treasures of

         18  New York City. And is nationally famous as part of

         19  the best that New York City has to offer us and the

         20  world in terms of a place to live, to work, and to

         21  raise a family. This hearing today is not about

         22  counting heads or about counting lots. It's about

         23  the reason why we have a landmarks preservation law.

         24  And that is to protect worthwhile features of this

         25  great City.
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          2                 By any measure, Fieldston has

          3  suppressed this standard by a wide margin. The

          4  record now before you includes the testimony of the

          5  architectural profession, historic preservation

          6  groups, residents of Riverdale, Riverdale's elected

          7  officials, residents of Fieldston and the Landmarks

          8  Preservation Commission itself. All of these

          9  strongly support this designation.

         10                 Now I said it's not about counting

         11  heads, but let me say that the only impartial

         12  audited poll of Fieldston residents on this question

         13  supported the designation by a significant margin.

         14  We do not know the circumstances under which these

         15  alleged, I don't know how many it is now, the number

         16  keeps changing. We don't know the circumstances

         17  under which those so called petitions were

         18  solicited. But I was solicited once myself for one

         19  of these and believe me it was an impartial

         20  solicitation. Thank you again.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         22                 MR. DIACOCE: Alec Diacoce. Thank you

         23  very much for listening to us this afternoon. I own

         24  two homes in Fieldston. I purchased them after the

         25  area was calendared for landmarking on December 7,
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          2  2003. And I look forward to working with the

          3  Landmarks Preservation Commission as I restore these

          4  two 1926 mansions. Thank you.

          5                 MR. HENKE: My name is Bob Henke and I

          6  also live in Fieldston on Delafield Avenue. I've

          7  lived there for about ten years. I'd like to just

          8  mention some of the things that have occurred here

          9  today and have been occurring sort of impugning the

         10  reputation of a lot people in the neighborhood and

         11  misinformation has been given to you.

         12                 First of all, someone said, he said

         13  he had been the head of the Department of Buildings

         14  and doesn't know what the Department of Buildings

         15  has in his records. I moved there as I said about

         16  ten years. I was able to go over to the Department

         17  of Buildings and pull the original filings for my

         18  house. I also looked at my neighbors on both sides

         19  and across the street just for some common ground

         20  information. They had the blueprints in detail. They

         21  had all the subsequent alterations that were made.

         22  The blueprints were the originals. There were even

         23  photographs of the house as it was originally built

         24  for the first tax records.

         25                 I have no doubt that the information
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          2  was given to you by the Landmarks Commission, it

          3  might have contained some errors, but certainly all

          4  the basic information is there and available to

          5  anyone who wants to get off their chair and go over

          6  and do some research. There is just bizarre records

          7  over there; where your original water meter was

          8  installed, where the shutoff valves is in the

          9  street. It is a very sensitive record for houses

         10  built in the 1920's.

         11                 I noticed also someone held up a

         12  picture here of a house that he said he saw this

         13  morning that was a problem of some sort with the

         14  Landmarks Commission. It's not part of the district.

         15  It is specifically excluded from the landmark

         16  district. It is part of Fieldston and if you look at

         17  that picture, it is what appears to be a two- family

         18  house, one family permit. I still don't understand

         19  what's going on there. But if you look at it, you

         20  will see a good example of why we need some sort of

         21  controls over what's built in the Fieldston area. It

         22  just doesn't fit in any way.

         23                 Also, on the fact of the issue

         24  counting petitions, I hope that you take one tax lot

         25  and assign one vote. If there are three property
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          2  owners that doesn't count as three votes. And I'm

          3  sure that is what has been counted, petitions have

          4  been counted. By the way, someone said they went

          5  door- to- door. I've never seen that person in my

          6  life. I'll bet most of us here haven't who are on

          7  the other side. Thank you very much for your time.

          8                 MS. PILSNER: My name is Joyce

          9  Pilsner. I'm going to try not to repeat a lot of

         10  what has been said, although it is hard not too.

         11  Although, I certainly don't speak for the community

         12  board, I think that I want to just establish my

         13  credentials. I'm a former Chairman of the Community

         14  Board and a long time member of the board. I've also

         15  been very active in the Riverdale community on

         16  various other boards. So I think I have a good sense

         17  of how the Riverdale community feels. And I think it

         18  is not just Fieldston that is interested in the

         19  landmarking as the community boards both showed, I

         20  think the entire community supports this or at least

         21  a majority of the community does.

         22                 I think Fieldston is one of the

         23  bright jewels in New York City's crown. I think it

         24  would be tragic not to preserve it through

         25  landmarking. By the way, there are probably over
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          2  1,000 lots in Fieldston. So when one says a 130 lots

          3  voted for something, that doesn't represent a

          4  majority. Some of us by the way sent our envelopes

          5  back empty when we were sent an envelope to support

          6  the Fieldston Homeowners Group and we thought it

          7  would be kind of cute to send it back empty, but

          8  they may have counted them.

          9                 I always longed to live in Fieldston.

         10  When I was kid, my father used to drive us through

         11  and that is a long time ago. Then it was like going

         12  to the country and I never thought I would be lucky

         13  enough to live there. But I have been, my husband

         14  was active. Elizabeth Scheuer was very kind in

         15  thinking that he would have given her permission to

         16  oppose the landmarking. He would have led the pack

         17  towards landmarking. I think he was a former

         18  Chairman of the Fieldston Property Owners. We have

         19  been heavily invested in Fieldston and in the in

         20  Riverdale community and certainly as a citizen of

         21  New York. I think when I bring people to Fieldston

         22  from other countries and from other states --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I have to ask you

         24  to wrap up.

         25                 MS. PILSNER: -- They are amazed that
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          2  New York City has something so special. I hope that

          3  you will help us preserve it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. Next

          5  panel. Thank you very much. Mr. Kornfeld? Robert

          6  Kornfeld, is he still here? Alicia Albert, John

          7  Siegal, he left? Pamela Hort, Edward Kirkland. You

          8  here Mr. Kirkland?

          9                 MR. KIRKLAND: Yes, I am.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. And Tony

         11  Robins. Is Tony Robins here? Great. Again this is

         12  all in favor. You can begin. Just identify yourself.

         13                 MR. ROBINS: My name is Tony Robins.

         14  I'm here to support the designation of the Fieldston

         15  Historic District. I speak as a former resident of

         16  Fieldston. My parents lived there for 40 years. As

         17  an architectural historian who has published on the

         18  subject of Fieldston and the work of architecture,

         19  Dwight James Baum, you can have a look if you like;

         20  a former staff member of the Landmarks Commission

         21  and a homeowner in a neighborhood that became a

         22  historic district only after I had moved there.

         23                 Having grown up in Fieldston in the

         24  50's and 60's, I can testify that it is a magical

         25  place unlike any other New York neighborhood. Its
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          2  special character derives, as you've heard from the

          3  care and thought that went into its design. On the

          4  one hand, avoiding the typical street grid with Mr.

          5  Wheeler laying out the streets on a curving pattern

          6  following the areas topography. On the other, some

          7  60 of the houses designed by Dwight James Baum.

          8  Thanks to Wheeler's plan, Baum's designs Fieldston

          9  enjoys some of the most beautiful streetscapes in

         10  the City. I think it is not too much of a stretch to

         11  suggest that Fieldston was designed to become a

         12  historic district.

         13                 Recently, I have seen articles in the

         14  press suggesting that Dwight James Baum was a minor

         15  architect; even a hack. This is simply not true.

         16  Baum's work is based on historic styles. But each of

         17  his houses is an original design. Suggestive of the

         18  Tudor of the Spanish Colonial, but never a cheap

         19  imitation of an old building. The high quality of

         20  his houses won him various awards and honors.

         21                 He designed many other buildings

         22  elsewhere in the City and the country. But the

         23  houses of Fieldston collectively form his major

         24  work. Based on my own years of experience at the

         25  Landmarks Commission where I served as Deputy Record
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          2  of Research and Director of Survey, I can say

          3  without hesitation that Fieldston is imminently

          4  deserving as designation as an historic district.

          5                 Over the years, poorly thought out

          6  changes have threatened the historic character of

          7  the neighborhood. Fieldston is endangered less by

          8  major new construction, although that does happen,

          9  than by attrition. In this house, the loss of leaded

         10  glass windows and that one an unsympathetic addition

         11  and a third, a new facade. It is my guess that the

         12  original Fieldston residents would have been unhappy

         13  with this state of affairs given the care for which

         14  they oversaw the neighborhood's development and

         15  controlled the designs of its houses. And they would

         16  have very likely have approved of historic district

         17  designation had it existed then.

         18                 Finally, I would say that I now live

         19  in an historic district. I served on my co- ops

         20  board. We live with it. It is a nuisance at times.

         21  But the benefits far outweigh the negatives. Thank

         22  you.

         23                 MS. ALBERT: My name is Alicia Albert.

         24  I am a 25- year resident of Fieldston. I'm very

         25  strongly in favor of landmarking. Coming at the end,
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          2  it is hard not to say a lot of things that have

          3  already been said before. But, with no architectural

          4  expertise, but some historical knowledge, I would

          5  remind everybody that the Romans copied the Greeks.

          6  We take them very seriously.

          7                 I think it is a beautiful place to

          8  live. I have been except for the very last meeting

          9  at every meeting starting with the first time that

         10  Jennifer Raab came in. This was before any decision

         11  was made when there was just a request and she

         12  showed slides and she showed specifics of houses in

         13  Douglaston and how they had been and what the

         14  request were and what had been shown to the

         15  Landmarking Commission and how these things had been

         16  accomplished. I was very impressed by that and have

         17  always been with landmarking for that reason.

         18                 Now the whole idea that it is a place

         19  that is lovely for people not only who live there,

         20  but people that visit and that it is a credit to

         21  Riverdale, the Bronx, New York City, yes. And the

         22  idea that people can come there and park their cars,

         23  they can't park their cars in Central Park either.

         24  People are not stopped when they walk around. People

         25  come and walk around and that they can't park; well
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          2  tough. That's a big problem in the City. I just

          3  regret that this has created a situation of tension

          4  and unpleasantness. I personally feel that there has

          5  been a lot of dishonesty and misrepresentation on

          6  the other side. I am very much, very much for

          7  specifically going over every accusations and every

          8  number that has been presented. I have read every

          9  letter carefully and I am just very aware of all the

         10  misrepresentation.

         11                 MR. KORNFELD: I'm Robert Kornfeld,

         12  Jr., speaking on my own behalf. I'm an architect and

         13  a board member of the Historic Districts Council. I

         14  served as Chairman of the Bronx Landmarks Task

         15  Force. I researched the architectural history of the

         16  Riverdale Historic District along with my father,

         17  Robert Kornfeld, Sr., who was the founder of the

         18  district. I researched the history of the Jerome

         19  Park Reservoir and prepared the Jerome Park National

         20  Register Historic District nomination for the State

         21  Historic Preservation Office.

         22                 Designation of Fieldston is well

         23  deserved and long overdue and the Landmarks

         24  Commission should be commended for doing the right

         25  thing, even if it was destined to be contentious.
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          2  There is no question that buildings there are

          3  endangered. They are in danger of demolition,

          4  inappropriate additions. And there is no questions

          5  that has increased in recent years. It is not

          6  reasonable to count on this stewardship to continue

          7  indefinitely in the future. I think there are signs

          8  that it is weakened. And the fact that a large

          9  percentage of people don't want landmark protection

         10  is more evidence of the fact that stewardship has

         11  weakened.

         12                 I have statement I would like to give

         13  you. I went through more points having to do with

         14  the architectural merit of the district. Those

         15  comments were have heard in the newspaper didn't

         16  really come up at this hearing. But I would like to

         17  say that the architecture and the landscaping are

         18  inseparable. You can't say the landscaping is

         19  significant, but the buildings aren't. It is all one

         20  conception. It was a variety of styles by major

         21  architects of that style of architecture. They were

         22  not iconoclasts like Le Corbusier and that was not

         23  their ambition or their philosophy. Fieldston

         24  exemplifies their philosophy and it is really quite

         25  subtle and brilliant the combination of landscape,
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          2  the natural topography and the architecture.

          3                 The opposing testimony that I've

          4  heard here and at the designation hearings seems

          5  based largely on misunderstanding of the Landmarks

          6  law and exaggerated sense of the impact that

          7  designation would have and outright rejection of the

          8  concept of landmarking. I don't think  this is the

          9  appropriate forum to put landmarking itself on

         10  trial. It is absolutely a good designation. People

         11  love living in historic districts. Historic

         12  districts have flourished throughout the City.

         13  People love buying homes in historic districts. I

         14  don't think that a pathological fear of designation

         15  is a basis for overturning a good designation. I

         16  don't think that the idea of the Homeowners

         17  Association taking on the role of a sort of kangaroo

         18  Landmarks Commission is a serious proposal. I really

         19  think it is a delaying tactic and all of these

         20  things with the applications and so forth, it is

         21  just a lot of obfuscation. I don't think it is

         22  relevant to what this body should be doing.

         23                 In Riverdale, if I just can have a

         24  moment, the Riverdale Historic District, the

         25  homeowners there have been overjoyed to live in a
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          2  historic district. They almost universally had good

          3  experiences and one building, a particular merit in

          4  the Riverdale Historic District would have been

          5  demolished if it were not for landmark designation.

          6  And the family that bought it, built a very

          7  successful addition that everyone loves. But that

          8  would not have had happened without Landmarks

          9  designation. They got all the square footage they

         10  needed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I'm sorry, but I

         12  have to ask you wrap up.

         13                 MR. KORNFELD: Yes. May I comment on

         14  one of Council Member Barron's comments?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Fifteen more

         16  seconds.

         17                 MR. KORNFELD: Yes. My father and I

         18  co- wrote an article in the Bronx County Historical

         19  Society Journal in 1984 that detailed the history of

         20  the areas as part of our research for Riverdale that

         21  started with the time of the Indians, confiscation

         22  of the property after the American Revolution and

         23  traced it down. Most of that is common to Fieldston

         24  and Riverdale.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 MR. KIRKLAND: Hello, my name is

          4  Edward Kirkland. I have the misfortunate of living

          5  in Manhattan. I'm a walker in the City. I'm 80 years

          6  and I spent 50 years of that walking all over the

          7  entire City. I'm going to tell you that Fieldston is

          8  an extraordinary place and an extraordinary resource

          9  for the entire City. It is one of the exceptional

         10  places. Every spring and every fall, in general, my

         11  wife and I walk through Fieldston and Riverdale to

         12  look at the plantings, look at the buildings, look

         13  at the turning leaves and it is one of the great

         14  experiences of our lives.

         15                 As the last few years, as we have

         16  been walking through it, we have noticed there is a

         17  gradual change. Bit by bit buildings are torn down,

         18  replaced by larger ones, unfortunate additions

         19  occur. Just changes that are no longer consistent

         20  with the entire picturesque environment which my

         21  neighbor has spoken of and which is an extraordinary

         22  experience in the City. If we are to lose the only

         23  way of preserving this in my experience and I live

         24  right next to an historic district, the Chelsey

         25  Historic District. By the way, that's a derivative.
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          2  It is Greek Revival. And by the way, it was built by

          3  a great many designers and architects.

          4                 This is true of every district and

          5  every area of any importance. So I'm just saying to

          6  lose this extraordinary resource that we have in

          7  Fieldston would be to impoverish the City, make it

          8  poorer, make it less valuable to the residents; not

          9  merely of Fieldston, but of the City of tourists,

         10  people who come here and to lose it, the only way to

         11  save it is to, from my experience and it is a long

         12  experience, is to have landmark designation. I thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. Thank

         15  you very much. Our last panel, Martin Zelnik, okay.

         16  Robert Egan, Lorraine Koppell. Mrs. Koppell and you

         17  two will be our -- just out of curiosity, did you

         18  sign this slip? Thank you very much.

         19                 MS. SPEED: Good afternoon, my name is

         20  Paula LeCompte Speed. I am a resident of Fieldston

         21  for 11 years.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: You are here to

         23  speak in favor or opposition?

         24                 MS. LECOMPTE SPEED: In favor.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, thank you.
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          2                 MS. SPEED: But I must say that my

          3  love affair with Fieldston began 38 years ago and

          4  that's why Fieldston is very important. I was a very

          5  young teacher at that time and we made a point to go

          6  through this wonderful park like place with majestic

          7  trees and houses that we just dreamed of living in

          8  and we all selected a home. I did not get to

          9  purchase the home of my selection that I will keep

         10  secret now. But I did get to select a wonderful

         11  home. But I must say to you that I retired as a

         12  superintendent, but many teachers, children and

         13  their parents go through Fieldston for those dreams.

         14                 It is breathtaking to many of us and

         15  I just feel that we wanted to remain the way we saw

         16  38 years ago, for those who saw it 50 years ago or

         17  more that it is important to those that may live in

         18  Fieldston and may not. Every day, every weekend,

         19  people are coming to Fieldston for a breath of fresh

         20  air, they feel for just looking at the majestic

         21  homes. I am seriously in favor of Fieldston for

         22  Riverdale. I also will tell people I live in the

         23  Bronx. I'm very proud of that. And the Bronx is very

         24  proud of Fieldston. Thank you.

         25                 MS. KOPPELL: Good evening, my name is
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          2  Lorraine Coyle Koppell. I have lived in Fieldston

          3  for approximately 13 years. It is true that the

          4  stewards of the last 70 years have kept Fieldston in

          5  a pristine beautiful condition. It is also true that

          6  since we have been living there, we have seen some

          7  degradation to the architecture of Fieldston. It is

          8  distressing. It is true that the genesis of this

          9  Landmarking Commission proposal is that somebody was

         10  smart enough in Fieldston to say, you know what,

         11  maybe what we should do is preserve this area for

         12  future generations.

         13                 My concern is not whether a 100

         14  percent of the people are in favor of Fieldston

         15  being landmarked or a 100 percent of the people are

         16  opposed to Fieldston being landmarked. My concern is

         17  what is good for the future of Fieldston and the

         18  future of the Bronx. And Riverdale and the Bronx are

         19  being assaulted by overdevelopment right now and

         20  this Committee has the opportunity of preserving a

         21  little piece of the Bronx for future generations. We

         22  are not a community. People come in and they go so

         23  the people who are opposing landmarking today, may

         24  not be there tomorrow. Indeed, two of the three main

         25  proponents or opponents of Fieldston being
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          2  landmarked are moving from Fieldston.

          3                 Let us not use the numbers for or

          4  against as determinative of whether or not Fieldston

          5  should be landmarked, but rather whether or not it

          6  is good for Fieldston, it is good for the Bronx, and

          7  it is good for the City that one little area cannot

          8  be touched unmercifully by overdevelopment, two

          9  large houses, extensions that don't belong and a

         10  degradation of the architecture that will not do

         11  Fieldston or this City justice. Thank you.

         12                 MS. FOLLETT: My name is Sara

         13  Kellermann- Follett and my initial remarks are going

         14  to be made as Sarah Follett. I have two separate

         15  personas. As Sara Follett, I've lived in Fieldston

         16  for 26 years in a house that was built in 1917. I

         17  was enthusiastic and as house proud as anyone else

         18  in this room. And you've heard it repeatedly and I

         19  will say it one more time, Fieldston is unique. It

         20  is a gem and it must be preserved.

         21                 I'm now going to switch to Sara

         22  Kellermann. I had the privilege of working for the

         23  City of New York for many years. The last ten years

         24  I was Commissioner of Mental Health and Mental

         25  Retardation and Alcoholism Services. It is now
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          2  called, of course, the Department of Mental Hygiene

          3  and subsumed with the Department of Health. When I

          4  was Commissioner, the thing (and I was Commissioner

          5  for ten years, I worked for Ed Koch), it was just

          6  the best experience of my life. When I was

          7  Commissioner, policy development, program

          8  implementation, they made the long days and the

          9  relatively modest pay worth it.

         10                 You've all been elected. You are

         11  public officials. You have a lot of power. With that

         12  power comes a tremendous amount of responsibility.

         13  It is what keeps you here late in the day, gets you

         14  out of bed early, gets you into your communities at

         15  night. I would say voting to support to a firm that

         16  designation of Fieldston as a historic district is a

         17  marvelous opportunity for you to confirm your

         18  commitment to public service and to guarantee a

         19  legacy from the past into the future. Thank you

         20  very, very much. Thank you for your attention today.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. I want

         22  to thank my colleagues, particularly Council Member

         23  Comrie who stuck it out and kept me company. I want

         24  to thank everybody who is here and who testified

         25  today both in favor and in opposition. We had a
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          2  number of esteemed individuals who live in the

          3  Fieldston area and who don't and it was very helpful

          4  to hear your points of view respectively. With that,

          5  we're going to close the hearing and adjourn the

          6  meeting. Thank you very much.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 5:15 p.m.)
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